
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 
 

Committee Administrator:     Democratic Services Officer  (01609 767015) 
 

Monday, 2 February 2015 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting CABINET 

 
Date Tuesday, 10 February 2015 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Stone Cross, Northallerton 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

P. Morton. 
 
Phillip Morton 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Councillors Councillors 

M S Robson (Chairman) 
P R Wilkinson (Vice-Chairman) 
Mrs B S Fortune 
 

N A Knapton 
B Phillips 
 

 
Other Members of the Council for information  

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 
 
  Page No 

 

1.  MINUTES 
 

 

 To confirm the decisions of the meeting held on 16 December 2014 (CA.55 - 
CA.59), previously circulated. 
 

 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

Resources Management   
 

3.  FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2024/25 
 

1 - 14 

 This report considers the Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25. 
  
In accepting the recommendation, Cabinet will approve and recommend to 
Council the Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25 at Annex ‘A’ and ‘A’(1) of 
the report. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

4.  REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 
 

15 - 22 

 This report presents at a strategic level the revenue budget proposals for the 
next financial year 2015/16. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and recommend to 
Council the draft revenue budget for 2014/15. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

5.  COUNCIL TAX 2015/16 
 

23 - 40 

 This report considers for 2015/16 the level of Council Tax and the policy on 
reserves.  In addition, it provides Members with details of the Council's formula 
grant settlement released on 19 December 2013 and the Council's Business 
Rates base that will be used by Government to calculate the Business Rates 
target for 2016/17 for the Retained Business Rates funding mechanism, which 
is now operated as a pool across North Yorkshire. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Council will be asked to approve various 
decisions regarding the setting of the level of Council Tax; confirm that the 
indicators on expenditure and treasury management decisions are affordable, 
prudent and sustainable and approve the policy on Balances and Reserves. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

6.  2015/16 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET, TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY STATEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
 

41 - 76 

 This report considers the 10 year Capital Programme covering the financial 
years 2015/16 to 2024/25, the 2015/16 Capital Programme and the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement; including the Annual Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement. 
  

 



In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and recommend to 
Council that the 10 year Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2016/17 be approved, 
as detailed in paragraph 2.2 and attached at Annex ‘A’;  the Capital 
Programme 2015/16 detailed in Annex ‘B’ be approved for implementation; the 
Treasury Management Strategy attached at Annex ‘C’ be approved; the 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement attached in the body of the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement Annex ‘C’ be approved; the 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators attached at Annex ‘C’ in the body of the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement be approved; the revised Treasury 
Management Policy Statement at Annex ‘D’ be approved and the Scheme of 
Delegation and role of the S151 Officer attached at Annex ‘E’ be approved. 
 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

7.  2014/15 QUARTER 3 REVENUE MONITORING REPORT 
 

77 - 82 

 This report provides an update on the Revenue Budget position of the Council 
and the Reserve Funds at the end of December 2014. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and recommend to 
Council the budget surplus of £1,357 at paragraph 3.2 of the report; the use of 
funds from the one-off fund at paragraph 6.4 of £5,000 and the use of funds 
from the Economic Development fund at paragraph 6.3 of £65,200.  
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

8.  2014/15 QUARTER 3 CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT 
MONITORING REPORT 
 

83 - 98 

 This report provides the Quarter 3 update at 31 December 2014 on the 
progress of the Capital Programme 2014/15 and the Treasury Management 
position.  A full schedule of the Capital Programme 2014/15 schemes is 
attached at Annex ‘A’ of the report, together with the relevant update on 
progress of each scheme. 
  
In accepting the recommendations, Cabinet will approve and recommend that 
Council approves the net decrease of £224,486 in the Capital Programme to 
£2,318,941 and the detailed Capital Programme attached at Annex ‘A’; 
approves all movements in the Capital Programme +/- £20,000, in accordance 
with financial regulations, as detailed in Annex ‘B’; notes the further overall 
decrease in the Capital Programme which are individually  below £20,000 as 
detailed in Annex ‘B’ and cumulatively total £18,083; notes the Capital Funding 
position - contributions of £266,704, capital receipts of £857,707 and 
£1,194,530 capital reserves; notes the Treasury Management activity at Annex 
‘C’ and notes the Prudential and Treasury indicators at Annex ‘E’ and that 
there were no changes at Quarter 3. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

9.  FUNDING AND INVESTMENT OFFICER 
 

99 - 104 

 This report seeks approval for funding to create a Funding & Investment Officer 
post within the Business & Economy Team for an initial period of 2 years to 
support the implementation of the Councils Economic Strategy. 
  
 

 



In accepting the recommendation, funding of £39,930 will be approved from 
the Economic Development Fund in 2015/16 and £40,730 in 2016/17 for a post 
of Funding & Investment Officer; the effectiveness of the role will be reviewed 
towards the end of 2016/17 and, subject to the outcome of the review, a further 
report will be brought to Cabinet regarding funding the post beyond 2016/17. 
 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

Policy Implementation   
 

10.  PUBLIC OPEN SPACE, SPORT AND RECREATION ACTION PLANS 
 

105 - 112 

 This report seeks endorsement of the Public Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Action Plans for Brompton and Stillington. 
  
In accepting the recommendation, the Public Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Action Plans in Annex B of the report will be endorsed. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): Brompton; Stillington 
 

 

11.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting during 
consideration of items 12 and 13 on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 

 

12.  PURCHASE OF THE NORTHALLERTON PRISON SITE 
 

113 - 146 

 This report provides an update on the current position regarding the purchase 
of the Northallerton Prison Site. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): Northallerton Broomfield; Northallerton Central; Northallerton 
North 
 

 

13.  STAFFING MATTERS 
 

147 - 158 

 This report seeks approval of staffing matters. 
 

 

 Relevant Ward(s): All Wards 
 

 

 



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015 
 
Subject: FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2024/25  

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to consider the Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25. 

 
 Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25 
1.2 The Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25 is set out in Annex A and Annex A(1).  This 

provides an analysis of the estimated financial position and the direction of the Council's 
financial resilience over the next 10 years taking into consideration government funding, 
other resources, service pressures and priorities.  It is divided into the following sections:- 

 
 Benefits of and principles underpinning the Financial Strategy for 2015/16 to 2024/25; 
 The national economic context; 
 Government policy; 
 Local Government Finance Settlement; 
 New Homes Bonus; 
 Local income position; 
 Spending pressures; 
 Financial risk analysis. 

 
1.3 The key issues for the Financial Strategy are:- 
 

 The impact of the continued reduction in funding for Local Government; 
 
 Business Rate appeals lodged by businesses in Hambleton have a direct impact on 

the Council.  For 2015/16 there is a collection fund deficit of over £500,000 as a result 
of past appeals, this should not be an issue in future years as legislation is now in 
place to prevent businesses back dating appeals. 

 
 The potential income generated by the New Homes Bonus grant, the uncertainty 

around funding beyond 2017/2018 and the amount of money to be given to the Local 
Economic Partnership; 

 
 The impact of the low Bank Base Rate on the ability of the Council to generate 

investment income from balances; 
 
 The impact on collection rates of the localised Council Tax support scheme. 
 
 Spending pressures as a result of inflation being above Government targets. 
 
 Significant income receipt from the Council’s loan to Broadacres Housing Association. 

 
1.4 At the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee in September 2014, the Auditor, 

Deloitte, stated that the Council is in one of the best financial positions of any Council in the 
UK. Since that meeting the Council’s Financial Standing has been improved significantly, 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



with anticipated balances in 2024/25 increasing by £6.780m from £13.309m to £20.089m, 
an increase of 50.9%.  This places the Council in a remarkable and unique financial 
position which, unlike many other Councils, guarantees its financial viability well beyond the 
next decade.   

 
2.0 LINK TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES: 
 
2.1 One of the Council's priorities is to reduce costs and improve the productivity of services. A 

robust Financial Strategy can assist with this. 
 
3.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
3.1 There are no risks associated in approving the recommendation. 
 
4.0 RECOMMENDATION: 
 
4.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the Financial 

Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25 at Annex ‘A’ and ‘A’(1). 
 
 
 

JUSTIN IVES 
 
Background papers:  None 
 
Author ref:   JI 
 
Contact:   Justin Ives 
    Director of Support Services and Deputy Chief Executive 
    Direct Line No 767022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100215 Financial Strat 1516 to 2425 

 

Page 2



 

ANNEX ‘A’ 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2024/25  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2024/25: 
 
1.1 The Financial Strategy is a key aspect of the Council’s Budget Policy 

Framework.  It aims to ensure that resources are aligned to the Council’s 
corporate aims as set out in the Council's Business Plan, as well as delivering 
customer focused outcomes and continual service delivery improvement.  
The Financial Strategy sets out the strategic financial position and the 
financial direction of the Council over the next 10 years taking into 
consideration the Council’s strategic objectives, significant Government grant 
cuts, other resources and service pressures.  The Strategy is regularly 
monitored and updated to reflect the relentless changes in public sector 
finance.  The key objective of the Financial Strategy is to facilitate the 
strategic objectives of the Council whilst providing the assurance that the 
financial standing of the Council over the next 10 years maintains resilience. 

 
2.0 BENEFITS AND PRINCIPLES UNDERPINNING THE FINANCIAL 

STRATEGY 2015/16 TO 2024/25: 
 
2.1 The Benefits of preparing and maintaining the Financial Strategy include:- 
 

 It provides financial parameters to assist with strategic planning to 
support the delivery of the Council’s strategic objectives; 

 
 It allows the Council to respond to internal and external financial 

pressures assisting with the development of a sustainable budget over 
the period of the Financial Strategy; 

 
 It highlights financial risks and mitigating controls promoting the 

maximisation of resources and the delivery of value for money; and 
 
 It reviews the Council’s reserves policy to assist in planning against 

unforeseen events. 
 
2.2 The principles underlying the Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25 are set 

out below:- 
 

 The overall Financial Strategy will ensure the Council’s resources are 
targeted towards meeting its strategic priorities; 

 
 The Council’s Business Plan and associated activities will inform a review 

of the Financial Strategy on an annual basis.  The annual review will 
include an update of the 10 year financial forecast, expected 
developments within the Council together with the anticipated financial 
impact of any legislative changes; 

 
 

Page 3



 
 

 
 The Council undertakes to maintain its level of expenditure within the 

boundaries set in the Annual Revenue Budget.  If, following monthly 
budget monitoring, expenditure is expected to exceed original estimates, 
plans will be prepared detailing the actions required to ensure that 
spending at the year end does not exceed the original estimate; 

 
 The Council will maintain its General Reserve at an adequate level to 

cover any major unforeseen expenditure.  The Council will aim to balance 
its revenue budget without reliance on the use of the General Reserve; 

 
 The Council will maintain earmarked reserves for specific priorities that 

are consistent with its strategic objectives.  The use of these reserves will 
be consistent with the principles set out in the Financial Strategy and will 
be reviewed annually; 

 
 The Council will balance the need to increase Council Tax with the 

delivery of its priorities, taking into account the economic challenges 
facing its communities; 

 
 Opportunities for securing external funding will be sought.  The 

implications of the cessation or withdrawal of funding will also be 
reviewed to ensure that options are considered prior to undertaking 
externally funded schemes. 

 
3.0 NATIONAL ECONOMIC CONTEXT: 
  
 Deficit Reduction Plan 
3.1 The Government’s policy to eliminate public sector debt appears to be aiding 

the economic recovery of the UK.  However, the fiscal outlook continues to 
remain very challenging for the medium to long term. 

 
 Inflation 
3.2 The Consumer Price Index has now dipped below the Government's target 

level of 2% for the first time since December 2009, another sign that the 
UK economy is recovering. 

 
3.3 The rate of Consumer Price Index is currently at a 12 year low of 1%.  This is 

as a direct result of depressed global oil prices.  The positon will continue to 
be monitored. 

 
 Bank Base Rate 
3.4 The Bank Base Rate remains at an all time low of 0.5% since March 2009.  

Despite the economic recovery, the Bank of England shows no sign of 
increasing the Bank Base Rate.  Latest projections anticipate that an increase 
will not occur before the end of 2016.  This has a significant impact on the 
Council’s ability to generate investment income and will continue to be 
regularly monitored and revised. 

 
4.0 GOVERNMENT POLICY AND IMPACT: 
 
 Spending Review 2010 
4.1 The main emphasis of Spending Review 2010 was to significantly reduce 

public sector spending to facilitate a reduction in the UK’s borrowing deficit. 
Based upon Spending Review 2010 the Local Government finance settlement 

Page 4



 
 

 
for 2011/2012 and 2012/2013 was announced on 11 January 2011.  This 
resulted in a reduced finance settlement for the Council of over £1.6m or 29% 
across the period. 

 
 Spending Round 2013 
4.2 Spending Round 2013 was announced in June 2013, this set out in broad 

terms the funding envelope for Local Government for 2014/15 and 2015/16.  
It was estimated that the Council would lose an additional 21% of its funding 
from Central Government over the 2 year period. However, further cuts have 
increased this to almost 25%. 

 
5.0 LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT AND THE IMPACT OF 

BUSINESS RATE RETENTION: 
 
5.1 On the 1 April 2013 a new funding mechanism was introduced for Local 

Government that replaced Formula Grant.  The new Business Rate Retention 
funding model enables Councils to keep a proportion of the business rates 
collected locally, providing an incentive for Councils to grow their local 
economy. 

 
5.2 The implications of the new scheme are that the Council is funded up to its 

base line level of funding (the 2012/13 formula grant adjusted for rural 
weighting).  This base line position is then reduced in line with Government 
funding reductions.  Latest estimates released by the Local Government 
Association suggest that these reductions could be up to a 43% reduction by 
2020.  This base line funding will be made up of a combination of retained 
business rates and new revenue support grant. 

 
5.3 In 2014/15 the Council entered a Business Rate Pool with other Councils in 

North Yorkshire (excluding Selby District Council and Harrogate Borough 
Council).  The effect of this pool is that any business rates collected by pool 
members above the Government’s target will be retained by the pool, 50% 
will not be forfeited to Central Government.  It is anticipated that in 2015/16 
the Council will benefit from the pooling arrangement by approximately 
£140,000. 

 
5.4 Under the Business Rate Retention System business rate appeals lodged by 

organisations in Hambleton have a direct impact on the Council.  For 2015/16 
there is a collection fund deficit of over £500,000 as a result of past appeals. 
This should not be an issue in future years as legislation is now in place to 
prevent organisations back dating appeals. 

 
 
6.0 NEW HOMES BONUS GRANT SCHEME: 
 
6.1 The new Homes Bonus Grant scheme is designed to create an effective fiscal 

incentive to encourage Councils to facilitate housing growth.  The Grant is not 
a ring-fenced grant and is intended to be part of the Council's core funding, as 
such the CLG have stated that they intend New Homes Bonus Grant to be a 
‘permanent feature of the Local Government finance system’.  However, 
commitment to the scheme has only been given until 2017/2018. 

 
 

Page 5



 
 

 
6.2 The scheme is designed to pay the Council the average annual value of 

Council Tax for a property from the year after its occupancy for a total of 
6 years.  For a Band D property this amount is £1,439 per year, these 
average amounts per Council Tax Band are set for the period of the scheme.  
In addition a grant of £350 per affordable home will be paid to the Council 
from the year after occupancy for a total of 6 years. 

 
6.3 Similar to the Business Rate Retention scheme there is a split of this income, 

with 80% retained by the District Council, 18% to the County Council and 2% 
to the Fire Authority.  New Homes Bonus represents an opportunity for the 
Council to generate significant levels of grant that can assist in dealing with 
the unprecedented levels of formula grant reductions facing the Council. 

 
6.4 The funding for New Homes Bonus Grant comes from a top slice of Business 

Rates Retention monies paid to Central Government.  The Government has 
stated that post 2017/2018 100% of Business Rates Retention will be used to 
fund Local Government services. The risk to the Council’s Financial Strategy 
is if from 2017/2018 Government policy moves away from delivering housing 
to an area such as health, then there is the potential for this funding to be 
transferred to the County Council who deliver health services. 

 
7.0 LOCAL INCOME POSITION:  
 
 Council Tax 
7.1 The Localism Act 2011 gives a provision for a referendum to veto excessive 

Council Tax increases.   This effectively places a limit on the level of Council 
Tax set by the Council.  If the Council exceeds the Government's prescribed 
limits the public would be able to vote to agree or veto any considered 
‘excessive’ increase. 

 
7.2 The potential additional cost of a referendum and re-billing would be 

significant and negate the benefit from the Council Tax increase.  Therefore 
increasing Council Tax above the prescribed limits would require careful 
consideration.  

 
7.3 In the last three years the Council has taken the decision not to increase 

Council Tax and to accept the Government's Council Tax Freeze Grant.  The 
Government has announced a 1% Council Tax Freeze Grant for 2015/16.  
The Financial Strategy assumes the Council will accept this Grant. 

 
 Interest on Balances 
7.4 Given the continued low Bank Base Rate, the revenue budget for interest on 

balances has been set at a prudent level.  The Financial Strategy has been 
prepared on the basis that this level of interest rates will continue until the end 
of 2016 at the earliest, with only small increases beyond that date.  This is 
consistent with the latest projections on the Bank Base Rate from the Bank of 
England and other City Institutions. 

 
 Fees and Charges 
7.5 Fees and charges levied by the Council provide a significant source of 

income and facilitate reinvestment in Council services, all fees and charges 
have been frozen in 2015/16.  In future years the Council will give 
consideration to the impact on its services, local economic circumstances and 
the Financial Strategy in considering appropriate fees and charges. 

Page 6



 
 

 
 
 Capital and Prudential Borrowing 
7.6 All revenue implications associated with the Capital Programme are 

considered when setting the Capital Programme.  The Council has taken the 
decision to fund the Capital Programme via reserves with the exception of a 
£25m to £35m loan to Broadacres Housing Association. The loan will be 
funded through a mix of using the Council’s own resources and Prudential 
borrowing.  This mix will ensure the maximum interest receipt return to the 
Council whilst maintaining a robust cashflow. 

 
 Reserves and Balances 
7.7 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires local authorities to have 

regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated future 
expenditure when calculating the budget requirement.  In establishing 
reserves the Council must comply with the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. 

 
7.8 The provision of an appropriate level of reserves and balances is a 

fundamental aspect of prudent financial management.  Their purpose is to 
provide for unexpected adverse changes in income and expenditure levels 
and to provide funding for specific initiatives.  This is consistent with the 
Reserves and Balances Policy adopted by the Council in setting the 2014/15 
Council Tax. 

 
7.9 The detailed Financial Strategy Annex A(1) shows that the financial resilience 

of the Council is underpinned by a number of factors:- 
 
1) The Council will seek to maximise the interest receipt from the loan to 

Broadacres Housing Association; 
 
2) New Homes Bonus Grant will continue beyond 2017/18 and will be used 

to support  the revenue budget through the tax-payers reserve; and 
 
3) Revenue levels will be maintained to maximise interest income to 

support the revenue budget through the tax-payers reserve. 
 
7.10 It is anticipated that at 1 April 2015 the Council will have Reserves and 

Balances of £19.243m.  This provides the Council with a strong financial 
position to deal with the future financial challenges it is facing. 

 
8.0 SPENDING PRESSURES:  
  
 Pay   
8.1 Public Sector pay continues to be constrained, for the two year period of 

1 April 2014 to 1 April 2016 a national award of 2.2% was negotiated.  Given 
the economic recovery it is uncertain how long this constraint can be 
continued.   

       
Pensions 

8.2 The last actuarial review of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund was 
undertaken as at 31 March 2013.  A prudent approach has been taken with 
stepped increases in the deficiency contributions for 2013/14 and beyond.  
The Council will continue to review the position on the deficiency payments 

Page 7



 
 

 
with regard the option of making a lump-sum contribution to reduce the 
annual revenue payments.  

 
Energy prices 

8.3 Energy and vehicle fuel prices continue to be particularly volatile.  Prudent 
provision has therefore been included for continued annual increases in 
charges for gas, electricity and vehicle fuel for the period of the Financial 
Strategy. 

 
 
 Capital Programme 
8.4 The Financial Strategy provides an estimate of the capital resources that will 

be required between 2015/16 and 2024/25.  The programme has been 
constructed to ensure that expenditure is not only maintained within existing 
resources but that there is capital resources available at the end of the 
Strategy to provide for the future. 

 
9.0 FINANCIAL RISK ANALYSIS: 
 
9.1 The key financial risks and associated implications for the Financial Strategy 

are detailed below, a score of high, medium or low has been given to the 
likelihood of each risk occurring and the impact of risk on the Financial 
Strategy should it occur:- 

 
Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative 

action 
If the UK’s economic position 
worsens then the Government 
may look to public sector 
spending for further 
reductions.  This would 
reduce grant income to the 
Council further.  
 

Loss of income 
 

4 5 20 Lobby 
Government and 
respond to any 
consultations 
 

Under the Business Rate 
Retention scheme failure to 
meet the target for business 
rate collection set by 
Government represents a 
cost to the Council.  Also, 
under this scheme the 
Government has transferred 
the risk of business rate no 
payment to the Council.  
 

Loss of income 
 

3 5 15 Monitor business 
growth and 
reduction through 
collection rates.  
Act as an enabler 
with partners on 
economic 
development 
initiatives 
 
 

New Homes Bonus grant is 
pivotal to the resilience of the 
Financial Strategy.  Failure to 
increase the tax base year on 
year would significantly 
impinge on this resilience.  
 
 
 

Loss of income 
 

3 5 15 Use the Council's 
powers to 
encourage house 
building 
 

Page 8



 
 

 
Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative 

action 
Post 2017/18 there is a risk of 
further grant reductions 
should Government priorities 
shift from increased housing 
provision to enhancing 
functions not undertaken by 
the Council.  
 
 
 
 
 

Loss of income 
 

3 5 15 Lobby 
Government and 
respond to any 
consultations 
 

A continued low Bank Base 
Rate beyond 2016 would 
impact on the Council’s ability 
to generate investment 
income from balances.  
 

Loss of income 
 

4 3 12 Look for other 
investment 
opportunities 
 

Fees and charges should be 
set at a level to maintain a 
balance between service use 
and income generation.  
 

Loss of income 
 

4 3 12 Set fees and 
charges at a fair 
and reasonable 
level 
 

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
 
 
 

Page 9



Annex A1

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015  
 
Subject: REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to present at a strategic level the revenue budget proposals for 

the next financial year 2015/16. 
 
1.2 The summary estimates in this report are shown at Annex ‘A’ and present the 2013/14 

Actual; 2014/15 Original; 2014/15 latest Approved and 2015/16 Estimate budget.  
Commentary on the budget proposal is also contained in Annex ‘A’.  Theme budgets are 
shown at Annex ‘B’. 

 
2.0 BUDGET 2015/16: 
 
2.1 The original estimate for 2015/16 shows a net budget of £6,918,280.  This is £544,870 less 

than the budget set in 2014/15 which was £7,463,150. 
  
2.2 Considering the financial climate that the Council is currently operating in and the fact that 

Council Tax and all Fees and Charges will be frozen for another year this is a remarkable 
achievement.  This is attributable to a number of sound strategic decisions made in the last 
18 to 24 months including, a full corporate restructure, entering into the North Yorkshire 
Business Rate Pool and agreeing a significant loan to Broadacres Housing Association. 

 
3.0 FINANCIAL STRATEGY: 
 
3.1 The revenue budget estimate for 2015/16 is within the financial constraints of the Financial 

Strategy included previously on this Cabinet agenda. 
 
4.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
4.1 The key financial risks and associated implications for the Revenue Budget 2015/16 are 

detailed below, a score of high, medium or low has been given to the likelihood of each risk 
occurring and the impact of risk on the Financial Strategy should it occur:- 
 

Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative action 
Under the Business Rate Retention 
scheme failure to meet the target for 
business rate collection set by 
Government represents a cost to the 
Council.  Also, under this scheme 
the Government has transferred the 
risk of business rate no payment to 
the Council.  

Loss of 
income 
 

3 5 15 Monitor business 
growth and reduction 
through collection 
rates.  Act as an 
enabler with partners 
on economic 
development 
initiatives 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative action 
A forecast low Bank Base Rate of 
0.5% impacts on the Council’s ability 
to generate investment income from 
balances.  

Loss of 
income 
 

5 3 15 Look for other 
investment 
opportunities 
 

Broadacres Housing Association do 
not draw upon the offered loan in full 
in 2015/16. 
 

Loss of 
Income 

4 3 12 This would result in a 
timing difference in 
interest received and 
reserves would be 
used and then 
replaced at a later 
date to support the 
budget. 
 

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 It is a legal requirement under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 to set a balance 

budget and monitor the financial position throughout the year. 
 
7.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES: 
 
7.1 There are no specific equality implications to this report. 
 
8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
8.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves and recommends to Council the draft revenue 

budget for 2014/15. 
 
 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
Author ref: JI 
 
Contact: Justin Ives 
 Director of Support Services and Deputy Chief Executive 
 Direct Line No: 01609 767022 
 
Background papers: Budget Setting papers 2015/16 
 Financial Strategy 2015/16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100215  Revenue Budget 1516 

Page 16



 ANNEX ‘A’ 
 

REVENUE BUDGET – DRAFT ESTIMATES 2015/16 
 
 
1.0 DRAFT ESTIMATES 2014/15 
 
1.1 The table below details the revenue budget for 2015/16 at a strategic level. 
 

 2014/15 
Original 
£ 

2014/15 
Latest 
£ 

2015/16 
Estimate 
£ 

Customer and Leisure 1,087,120 1,394,530 1,618,760 
 

Environmental and Planning Services 
 

4,395,620 4,132,350 4,301,520 
 

Support Services 
 

1,890,820 1,609,460 888,170 
 

Internal Drainage Boards 89,590 99,830 109,830 
 

Net Budget 7,463,150 7,236,170 6,918,280 
 

 
1.2 The budget has been prepared in accordance with the Council's priorities reflected in the 

Council Plan. 
 
1.3 A detailed schedule of service’s budgets that constitute the total budget in each theme is 

shown at Annex ‘B’. 
 
2.0 FINANCIAL STRATEGY: 
 
2.1 The Council's latest Financial Strategy was presented previously at this Cabinet meeting. 

The revenue budget for 2015/16 is within the financial constraints set by the Financial 
Strategy. 

 
2.2 A number of assumptions which underpin the Financial Strategy have been applied in 

setting the 2015/16 revenue budget, these include:- 
 
 The revenue budget assumes that the Bank of England base will remain low at 0.5% 

throughout 2015/16, which will impact on the ability of the Council to generate 
investment income from balances; 

 
 All fees & Charges have been frozen for 2015/16. This takes into consideration the 

nature of the services, the impact on commercial viability and local economic 
circumstances; 

 
 A provision of 2.2% has been included for a pay award in 2015/16 in line with the 

national agreement; 
 
 Contracts and Service Level Agreements have been increased by the appropriate 

rate of Consumer Price Index where applicable.  Energy and vehicle fuel prices 
continue to be particularly volatile.  Prudent provision has therefore been included for 
continued annual increases in charges for gas, electricity and vehicle fuel for 2015/16.   

 

Page 17



 Business Rate Retention Scheme enables the Council to keep a proportion of the 
business rates collected locally, providing an incentive for Councils to grow their local 
economy.  For 2015/16 it is estimated that additional business rates will be retained of 
£300,000. 

 
2.3 Within the Financial Strategy it is estimated that the Council will lose an additional 22% of 

its funding from Central Government over the 2 year period 2015/16 and 2016/17, equating 
to a 14% cut in 2015/16.   

 
2.4 The Financial Strategy for 2015/16 assumes that the Council will accept the 1% Council 

Tax Freeze Grant offered by central Government and not increase Council Tax.  
 
2.5 These factors have been taken into account to balance the revenue budget and limit the 

Council's reliance on the Council Tax-Payer Reserve.  The assumptions in the Financial 
Strategy on the level of income generated by these streams are made on a prudent basis.   

 
3.0 RESERVES AND BALANCES: 
 
3.1 As the revenue budget has been set within the constraints of the Financial Strategy, the 

assumed level of revenue reserves and balances at 31 March 2016 remain consistent with 
the Financial Strategy. 

 
3.2 A summary of anticipated revenue reserves and balances at 31 March 2016 is set out 

below:- 
 

Reserve Balance 
£ 

 
Council Tax-payers 4,530,083 
Repairs and Renewals Fund 3,377,958 
Computer Fund 1,283,000 
Grants Fund 420,508 
One-Off Fund 483,322 
General Fund Working Balance 2,000,000 
Economic Development Fund 4,500,000 
TOTAL 16,594,871 

 
3.3 This reserve position is reliant on the income streams detailed in paragraph 2.3. 
 
4.0 FINANCIAL OUTLOOK: 
 
4.1 Although the revenue budget 2015/16 and Financial Strategy represent a robust position, 

the Council is not immune to the significant economic and financial challenges facing the 
whole of the public sector in the UK. 

 
4.2 The changes to the Local Government Finance Settlement and the impact of the Business 

Rate Retention Scheme has resulted in the forecast by the Local Government Association 
to indicate that the Council will see a reduction in its grant support from central Government 
of a further 48% by 2020. 

 
 
4.3 These unprecedented reductions in Government grant support increase the Council's 

reliance on other revenue income streams such as: 
  

Page 18



 The Business Rate Retention Scheme providing an incentive for Council’s to grow 
their own economy as 40% of additional business rate received is retained by the 
Council. 

 
 The localised Council Tax Benefit Scheme increasing the number of people who are 

now required to pay Council Tax. 
 
 Reviewing Fees and Charges across Council services. 

 
 Investment increase and loan interest. 

 
4.4 In addition to the reduction in grant funding, it is also necessary to consider the volatility of 

inflation, significant increases in energy prices, reduced investment interest rates and a 
slow down in house building which limits the Council's ability to generate New Homes 
Bonus Grant.   

 
4.5 The shortfall in funding and increase in costs presents a very challenging financial outlook 

for the Council.  The Council continues to ensure services are provided in a cost effective 
way enabling the Council to continue to preserve its front-line services for the community.   

 
4.6 Due to the Council's significant revenue balances it is in a better financial position than 

most to deal with these financial challenges.  However, to maintain this position efforts must 
be made in setting future budgets to, where possible, preserve these reserve levels and 
protect the Council's financial position.   

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
Report To:  Cabinet  

10 February 2015  
 
Subject:  COUNCIL TAX 2015/16  
 

All Wards  
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0  PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:  
 
1.1  This report considers for 2015/16 the level of Council Tax and the policy on reserves.  In 

addition, it provides Members with details of the Council's formula grant settlement released 
on 19 December 2013 and the Council's Business Rates base that will be used by 
Government to calculate the Business Rates target for 2016/17 for the Retained Business 
Rates funding mechanism, which is now operated as a pool across North Yorkshire.  

 
1.2  The current Financial Strategy assumes that the Council will set a 0% increase in Council 

Tax and accept the Council Tax Freeze Grant offered by Government.  It is proposed that 
this strategy is followed and that Council Tax in Hambleton is frozen for the fifth consecutive 
year.  

 
1.3  Detailed budget proposals were considered previously on this Cabinet agenda. The 

revenue budget for 2015/16 is £6,918,280, approximately a 7% reduction on the 2014/15 
revenue budget which was set at £7,463,150.    

 
1.4  The impact of the Localisation of Council Tax Benefit on the Council Tax Base and the 

implications for precepting authorities, in particular Parish Councils, is discussed in Annex 
‘A’.  

 
1.5  The statutory consultation with ratepayers was held during December 2014.  The results of 

these consultation exercises have been considered as part of the budget process and are 
attached in Annex ‘B’.  

 
1.6 A policy on the Balances and Reserves is set out in Annex ‘C’ for Members' approval.  
 
2.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
 
2.1 There are no major risks associated with the recommendations in this report.  
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
3.1  That Cabinet recommends to Council:-  
 

(1)  That it be noted that on 15 January Council calculated the Council Tax Base 
2015/16:- 

 
(a)  for the whole Council area as £34,710.28  [Item T in the formula in Section 31B 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")]; and  
 
(b)  for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in the 

attached Annex ‘A’(1).  
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



(2)  That the Council has calculated the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own 
purposes for 2015/16 (excluding Parish precepts) as £3,105,875.85.  

 
(3)  That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2015/16 in accordance with 

Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992:-  
 

(a) District/Parish Gross Expenditure  
£45,687,808.80 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish Councils  

 
(b)  District/Parish Gross Income (including Government Grants, use of 

Reserves and Collection Fund Surpluses etc)  
£41,306,984.15 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act  
 

(c) District/Parish Net Expenditure  
£4,380,824.65 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (Item R in the formula in 
Section 31B of the Act)  

 
(d)  Basic Amount of Tax (including average Parish Precepts)  

£126.2112 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R) all divided by Item T 
(1(a) above), calculated by the Council in accordance with 
Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 
for the year (including Parish precepts)  

 
(e) Parish Precepts  

£1,274,948.80 being the aggregate of all special items (Parish Precepts) 
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per Annex ‘A’)  

 
(f) Basic Amount of Tax (Unparished Areas)  

£89.4800  being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 4(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 34(2) of 
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for 
dwellings in those parts of its area to which no Parish precept 
relates  

 
(4) Major Precepting Authorities That it be noted that the North Yorkshire County 

Council, the North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority and the Police and Crime 
Commissioner North Yorkshire have issued precepts to the Council in accordance 
with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of 
dwellings in the Council's area as indicated in the table below and at Annex ‘A’(1).  

 
(5) Council Tax Bands for All Councils  

Figures for North Yorkshire County Council, North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority and Police and Crime Commissioner North Yorkshire are yet to be 
determined and will be reported at Council on 24 February 2015.  
 
That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts in the tables below as the 
amounts of Council Tax for 2015/16 for each part of its area and for each of the 
categories of the dwellings. 

 

Page 24



  Hambleton District Council 

 
Valuation Bands 

 
A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
59.65 69.60 79.54 89.48 109.36 129.25 149.13 178.96 
 
North Yorkshire County Council  
 
A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
 
North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
 
Valuation Bands 
 
A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
 
Police and Crime Commissioner North Yorkshire  
 
Valuation Bands 
 
A B C D E F G H 
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

 
(6) Excessive Council Tax  

That the Council determines that the Council's basic amount of Council Tax for 
2015/16 (at 3(f) above) is not excessive in accordance with the principles approved 
under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

 
(7) The appropriate amount is taken from the Council Taxpayers Reserve to support the 

decision at (3) above.  
 
(8)  The policy on Balances and Reserves at Annex ‘C’ is approved.  

 
 
JUSTIN IVES  
 
Background papers:  None  
 
Author ref:    JI  
 
Contact:    Justin Ives  

Director of Support Services and Deputy Chief Executive 
Direct Line No (01609) 767022  

 
 
 
100215 Council Tax 201516 

Page 25



ANNEX  ‘A’  
 

COUNCIL TAX 2015/16  
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND:  
 
1.1  This paper considers the level of Council Tax for 2015/16 in the light of the revenue budget 

for 2015/16 and Financial Strategy, as well as the Government's Formula Grant settlement 
and proposals for a fifth year of Council Tax freeze.  

 
 
2.0 REVENUE ESTIMATE AND FINANCIAL STRATEGY:  
 
2.1  The approved revenue estimate for 2015/16 is a net total of £6,918,280, this is 

approximately a 7% reduction on the 2014/15 approved budget of £7,463,150.  
 
2.2 The Financial Strategy demonstrated that the budget of £6,918,280 was affordable and 

would allow the Council to set a balanced budget.   
 
2.3 The affordability of this budget was predicted on assumptions made in the Financial 

Strategy around the level of grant funding for 2015/16, this affordability has been confirmed 
in the level of grant support allocated to the Council as part of the Local Government 
Finance Settlement announced on 20 December 2014.  

 
 
3.0 FORMULA GRANT SETTLEMENT AND COUNCIL TAX:  
 
3.1  The Comprehensive Spending Review announced in October 2010 set out unprecedented 

grant reductions for Local Government over the 4 year period 2011/12 to 2014/15. These 
cuts have continued and to date the Council has lost £2,708,525 or 46.6% of its grant 
funding.  

 
3.2 On 20 December 2014 the Finance Settlement for 2015/16 was announced.  The detail of 

the settlement is set out below, but in summary the Council is guaranteed to receive 
£3,497,039 of funding in 2015/16 from a combination of new Revenue Support Grant, 
Council Tax Freeze Grant, Localisation of Council Tax Benefit Grant and retained Business 
Rates.  This is a £547,824 or 15.6% reduction on the amount received in 2014/15.  

 

Detailed Funding Settlement 
 

 2015/16
£

Business Rates target 
 

26,889,770

Levy paid to Central Government 
 

(13,444,885)

Local share of Business Rates 
 

13,444,885

County Council/Fire share at 20% 
 

(2,688,977)

Hambleton District Council share at 80% 
 

10,755,908

Fixed tariff paid to Central Government  
 

(8,861,141)

Hambleton District Council Retained Business Rates Target 
 

1,894,767

Hambleton District Council Guaranteed Business Rates based on the Safety 
Net. 
 

1,752,660

Revenue Support Grant 1,602,272
 

Total Funding Settlement 
 

3,497.040

Page 26



3.3  The Business Rate Retention Funding Mechanism has with it inherent risk for Local 
Government.  Principally, if the business rate target set for the Council is not met the 
reduction in Business Rates will reduce the local share, not the amounts paid to Central 
Government.  Any loss of income will be met 80% by Hambleton District Council, 18% by 
North Yorkshire County Council and 2% by North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority.  

 
3.4  An aspect of the regulations in respect of the Business Rate Retention Scheme, Councils 

must set a Business Rates Base figure which is approved, this is used by Government to 
set the Business Rates Collection Target for the Council in the preceding year.  The 
Business Rates Base figure for 2015/16 is £26,950,801, this is the latest estimate from the 
National Non-domestic Rates Return.  

 
3.5 The 2015/16 budget has been set using the actual business rate target from the NNDR1 

return rather than that presented in the funding settlement as this figure is a timelier and 
more accurate reflection of the amount the Council is likely to receive.  Under the Business 
Rate Retention System business rate appeals lodged by organisations in Hambleton have 
a direct impact on the Council.  For 2015/16 there is a collection fund deficit of £578,900 as 
a result of past appeals this should not be an issue in future years as legislation is now in 
place to prevent organisations back dating appeals. 

3.6 Increases in Business Rate levels are set each year by Central Government and are based 
upon the RPI figure for September which stood at 2.3% (capped at 2%).  The provisional 
rate poundage to be applied in 2015/16 has been announced as follows:-  

- Non-Domestic Rate 49.3p  
- Small Business Rate 48.0p  

 
3.7 Under Schedule 7 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, the provisional multipliers 

will be confirmed after either the Local Government Finance Report 2015/16 has been 
approved by Parliament or by the end of March 2015. 

  
 
4.0 COUNCIL TAX:  
 

Council Tax Base 
 

4.1  Each year the Council is required to formally set the Council Tax Base and advise the 
appropriate precepting bodies.  This must be done by 31 January each year.  

 
4.2  The Council Tax Base for 2015/16 is set at 

34,710.28. 
 

 Council Tax Levels  
 
4.3 In producing the table below it must be stressed that some assumptions have been made 

as the information is not available owing to the precepting authorities not having met at the 
time of writing this report.  Initially, the assumption that has been made is that each of the 
precepting authorities will accept the Government's proposals of a freeze on Council Tax. 
However, as stated in paragraph 3.1.5 of the main report the precepting authorities have 
as yet not provide the information on the level of Council Tax and therefore these figures 
may be subject to change.  Parishes are not currently subject to the provision of the 
Localism Act relating to excessive Council Tax rises and are not part of the Government's 
Council Tax Scheme.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 
4.4  If the assumptions made above are current then the 2015/16 Council Tax at Band D will 

be:- 
 

2014/15 £       2015/16 £  Assumption  
 

1,078,52      County Council   TBC    
   208.62  Police Authority  TBC   

  63.33   Fire Authority   TBC   
   36.16  Parishes (average)  36.73  Parishes (average) 
   89,48  Hambleton    89.48  Council Tax freeze 
1,476.11 

 

5.0 IMPACT ON RESERVES:  

5.1  The impact on the Council's Council Taxpayers Reserve from the revenue budget, funding 
settlement and Council Tax decision is set out in the table below:- 

 
 

5.2 It is estimated at this stage that the Council be required to make a contribution from the     
 Council Taxpayers reserve of £273,169 to balance the 2015/16 budget.   
 
 
6.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
 
6.1 There are no major risks associated with this report.  

 
7.0 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2003:  
 
7.1  Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council's S151 Officer (Chief 

Financial Officer) to report to Members on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy 
of reserves held by the Council.  

7.2  The approved revenue budget has now been prepared by the Council's budget holders and 
has been subjected to challenge by the Finance staff and Chief Officers.  I therefore 
conclude the budgets included in this Council Tax setting process are robust and have 
been prepared in accordance with proper practices.  

 £
 

Revenue Budget: 
 

 6,918,280

Financed by:- 
Formula Grant 
 
Retained Business Rates (incl. S31 Grants)                               
    

 
1,602,272

 2,467,391

Collection Fund Deficit 
 

(578,900)

Council Tax 
 

3,105,876

Non ring-fenced grants 
 

48,472

Contribution from Reserves 
 

273,169

Balanced budget 
 

0

Page 28



 
7.3  The reserves of the Council are set out in Annex ‘C’ to this report.  I consider the level of 

reserves adequate to maintain the Council's current revenue expenditure and enable its 
longer term objectives as set out in the Financial Strategy. Annex ‘C’ sets out the policy on 
Reserves and Balances and supports my comments. The Annex also makes 
recommendations on the level of Balances and Reserves.  

Page 29



ANNEX  ‘B’ 

 

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2015/16 - SUMMARY 

The Budget Consultation was carried out between 8 September and 20 October 2014 and was well-
publicised to all residents and businesses across Hambleton District. 

From the 116 responses received, the largest majority responded from the Northallerton area and the 
least from the Easingwold area. The bulk of respondents were residents, rather than businesses or 
other organisations, and the 45-59 year age group attracted the majority of responses. This followed 
the same pattern as the previous year. 

Question four lists 12 service areas and respondents were asked to indicate the order of importance to 
them. The Waste Service, incorporating household, green, kerbside and street cleansing, continues to 
rank of most importance to respondents followed closely by Environmental Health and Leisure 
Services. Benefits and the Housing Service continued to rank of least importance. 

Question five asked respondents if they would support increasing council tax to invest in council 
services. In contrast to the previous year, where the majority responded as ‘maybe’, the most popular 
response in this consultation was ‘no’. Respondents already felt they paid enough council tax and 
savings should be sought elsewhere. Any support to increase the tax would very much depend upon 
where the money would be spent.  

Question six lists four services; Leisure, Public Car Parks, Recycling and Environmental Health and 
asked respondents to indicate their support for increasing fees and charges in these services. Out of 
those who indicated their support for increasing charges, Leisure attracted the majority of responses 
while Public Car Parks were overwhelmingly unsupported. This followed the same pattern as the 
previous year. Further comments suggested a halt to increasing charges and make better use of the 
funds currently available to manage business in a more effective way. This will be reflected in the 
2015/16 budget where no increase will be made to car park fees and charges.  

Finally, when asked for any further suggestions on how the council could increase income or reduce 
costs, a range of suggestions was received from recycling/upcycling waste goods to attracting bigger 
businesses into the District and improving the existing infrastructure in order to encourage visitors and 
spending.  

 

Page 30



 

 

Budget Consultation 2015/16 
 

8 September - 20 October 2014 
15 paper and 101 online responses received = 116 total 

 
 
 
 
 

Q1 Which of the following towns do you live in or closest to? 

   15 (12.9%) Bedale 

   7 (6.0%) Easingwold 

   47 (40.5%) Northallerton 

   29 (25.0%) Stokesley 

   17 (14.7%) Thirsk 

   1 (0.9%) Prefer not to say 

 
 

Q2 Are you responding as a ...? 

   94 (79.7%) Resident 

   20 (16.9%) Business 

   2 (1.7%) Voluntary organisation 

   0 (0.0%) Stakeholder group 

   2 (1.7%) Prefer not to say 

 
 

Q3 Which age group do you belong to? 

   0 (0.0%) under 18 years 

   4 (3.4%) 19-24 years 

   29 (25.0%) 25-44 years 

   43 (37.1%) 45-59 years 

   35 (30.2%) 60 years and over 

   5 (4.3%) Prefer not to say 

 
    Page 31



Q4 Please indicate the importance to you of the following services: 
(1=very important and 5=not important)

  1 2 3 4 5 No opinion No reply 

 
Household waste 
collection 
(black bin)           

78 (67.2%) 19 (16.4%) 5 (4.3%) 4 (3.4%) 4 (3.4%) 6 (5.2%) 0 (0.0%) 

 

Green waste collection 
(green bin) 

39 (33.6%) 31 (26.7%) 17 (14.7%) 12 (10.3%) 8 (6.9%) 8 (6.9%) 1 (0.9%) 

 

Kerbside recycling 
(blue box and bag) 

56 (48.3%) 22 (19.0%) 14 (12.1%) 8 (6.9%) 8 (6.9%) 7 (6.0%) 1 (0.9%) 

 
Street cleanliness 
(including litter collection, 
graffiti removal, fly-tipping) 

52 (44.8%) 36 (31.0%) 16 (13.8%) 4 (3.4%) 4 (3.4%) 2 (1.7%) 2 (1.7%) 

 Leisure services 
(including leisure centres, 
arts and culture, sports 
development, children's 
play, healthy lifestyles) 

34 (29.3%) 31 (26.7%) 19 (16.4%) 13 (11.2%) 15 (12.9%) 4 (3.4%) 0 (0.0%) 

 Planning 
(including planning 
applications and planning 
policy) 

22 (19.0%) 34 (29.3%) 25 (21.6%) 12 (10.3%) 14 (12.1%) 8 (6.9%) 1 (0.9%) 

 Economic Development 
(support to businesses, 
management of council 
offices and land) 

22 (19.0%) 25 (21.6%) 29 (25.0%) 17 (14.7%) 14 (12.1%) 8 (6.9%) 1 (0.9%) 

 Environmental Health 
(including licensing, food 
hygiene inspections, 
nuisance complaints, private 
water supplies, pest control) 

36 (31.0%) 35 (30.2%) 27 (23.3%) 10 (8.6%) 6 (5.2%) 2 (1.7%) 0 (0.0%) 

 
Benefits 
(housing benefits and 
council tax reduction)   

18 (15.5%) 18 (15.5%) 25 (21.6%) 18 (15.5%) 27 (23.3%) 9 (7.8%) 1 (0.9%) 

 Housing service 
(housing option advice, 
homelessness, provision of 
affordable housing) 

19 (16.4%) 21 (18.1%) 26 (22.4%) 15 (12.9%) 23 (19.8%) 11 (9.5%) 1 (0.9%) 

 
Public car parks 
(pay & display, free car 
parks) 

29 (25.0%) 24 (20.7%) 31 (26.7%) 15 (12.9%) 13 (11.2%) 3 (2.6%) 1 (0.9%) 

 Community safety 
(including anti-social 
behaviour, domestic abuse, 
alcohol awareness) 

31 (26.7%) 26 (22.4%) 33 (28.4%) 9 (7.8%) 12 (10.3%) 3 (2.6%) 2 (1.7%) 

 
Page 32



0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80
Number of respondents

1=
very im

portant

2345=
not im

portant

N
o opinion

N
o reply

Page 33



 Please expand your answer further if necessary: 

 
18 responses received 

 
 

Q5 Would you support increasing Council Tax to invest in Council services? 

   24 (20.7%) Yes 

   54 (46.6%) No 

   34 (29.3%) Maybe 

   3 (2.6%) No opinion 

   1 (0.9%) No reply 

 
Please expand your answer further to identify which services you would like to see any investment or no 
investment in: 

 44 responses received 

 

Q6 Would you support increasing fees and charges to facilitate investment in the following services? 

  Yes No Maybe No opinion No reply 

 Leisure 34 (29.3%) 59 (50.9%) 16 (13.8%) 7 (6.0%) 0 (0.0%) 

 Public car parks 15 (12.9%) 79 (68.1%) 17 (14.7%) 4 (3.4%) 1 (0.9%) 

 Recycling 26 (22.4%) 62 (53.4%) 22 (19.0%) 6 (5.2%) 0 (0.0%) 

 Environmental Health 19 (16.4%) 59 (50.9%) 24 (20.7%) 12 (10.3%) 2 (1.7%) 

 Please expand your answer further if necessary: 

  24 responses received 

 

 
 
 

Q7 
Do you have any other suggestions on how the Council could increase income or reduce costs to 
support the budget? 

   56 responses received 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Leisure Public car parks Recycling Environmental Health

Yes

No

Maybe

No opinion

No reply

Page 34



ANNEX  ‘C’ 

POLICY ON BALANCES AND RESERVES 

 
1.0  BACKGROUND:  

1.1  Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the Chief Financial Officer to 
report to Members on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of the 
reserves for which the budget provides.  

1.2  The purpose of this Annex is to:-  
-support the statement required to conform to Section 25  
-confirm the use of the Council’s balances and reserves, and  
-re-affirm the Council’s policy on the level of balances and reserves  

1.3  The Council currently maintains a number of balances and reserves, each of which 
has a purpose approved by Members.  Each of the balances and reserves will be 
considered in turn later in this Annex.  

1.4  The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) considers that a 
case for introducing a statutory minimum level of reserves, even in exceptional 
circumstances has not been made.  The Institute believes that Local Authorities, on 
the advice of their finance directors, should make their own judgements on such 
matters taking into account all the relevant local circumstances. Such circumstances 
vary and there is a broad range within which authorities might reasonably operate 
depending on their particular circumstances.  

1.5 There is no definitive guidance as to the minimum level of balances or reserves, either 
as an absolute amount or as a proportion of expenditure, since each local authority is 
independent, operates in a unique local environment and the decision is one of a 
number of inter-related decisions taken as part of its financial strategy.  Section 32 of 
the Local Government Act 1992 requires billing authorities (such as Hambleton) to 
have regard to the level of reserves needed for meeting estimated future expenditure 
when calculating the budget requirement.  Budgets are based upon forecasts of pay 
and price inflation, changes in interest rates, and the demand for and levels of service 
to be provided.  The purpose of balances and reserves is to provide for unexpected 
changes from these forecasts and to provide for the financing of some expenditure.  
Consequently the provision of an appropriate level of balances and reserves is a 
fundamental part of prudent financial management over the medium term.   

2.0 BALANCES AND RESERVES:  
 
2.1  Each of the Council’s balances and reserves is considered below.  

2.2  General Fund Working Balance  

2.2.1  Setting the level of this general reserve is just one of several related decisions in the 
formulation of the medium-term financial strategy and the budget for a particular year.  
Account should be taken of the key financial assumptions underpinning the budget 
alongside a consideration of the authority's financial management arrangements.  In 
addition to the cash flow requirements of the authority the following factors should be 
considered:-  

Page 35



Budget Assumptions  
 treatment of inflation  
 interest rates  
 treatment of demand led pressures (e.g. take-up of housing benefits)  
 levels of income  
 financial risks inherent in significant funding partnerships  
 the availability of other funds to deal with emergencies  
 estimates of the level of and timing and capital receipts, S106 monies and general 

cashflows  
 

Financial Standing and Management  
 the overall financial standing of the authority  
 the authority's track record in budget and financial management  
 the capacity to manage in-year budget pressures  
 the strength of financial information and reporting arrangements  
 the authority's financial procedure rules and budgetary flexibility  
 the adequacy of insurance arrangements to cover major unforeseen risks  

 
Adequacy of inflation  

2.2.2  Budgetary provision is made for inflation in respect of pay, prices and contract 
expenditure. The 2015/16 budgets contain a sum of £179,430 for such inflation. An 
adverse variance of 1% in the assumptions made to these forms of expenditure could 
result in additional expenditure of £89,720.  

Adequacy of interest rate assumption  

2.2.3  The Council is a debt free authority and has substantial funds available for investment. 
The amount under investment however is sensitive to changes in interest rates 
especially given the short-term nature (less than 1 year) of most of the investment 
activity and the need to retain some cash liquidity for day to day purposes. The events 
occurring in the banking and financial markets in 2009/10 shows how unpredictable 
this area can be.  Fortunately for the Council, most of its investments are in fixed term 
deposits.  The 2015/16 budget assumes an average of 0.75% over the year but 
during this time some core cash investments will need re-investing.  The budgets 
were prepared in a period where interest rates have remained at an all time low and 
have been stable at 0.5%. It is now unlikely that there will be a further reduction in 
interest rates to 0% and even more unlikely (although technically possible) for there to 
be a negative interest rate.  However, an adverse variance of 1% in interest rates 
would affect investment income by approximately £300,000. This would be borne by 
the Council Taxpayers Reserve.  

Treatment of demand led pressures  

2.2.4  Demand volatility can affect both expenditure (e.g. take up of housing benefits) and 
income (eg number of planning applications).  Housing Benefit is a significant item of 
expenditure estimated at £19,01m in 2015/16.  In 2015/16 the Localised Council Tax 
Support Scheme presents a particular risk to the Councils reserves position, increases 
in council tax support claimants in year will be funded by the Council, subsidy at a 
reduced rate will not be received until the following year.  If payments increase by 1% 
the cash flow implications would be in the order of £190,100.  

Page 36



Levels of income  

2.2.5  The major income budgets (for fees and charges) in 2015/16 are those relating to:- 

   £ 
Leisure Services 2,602,190
Development Control  700,000
Premises Development 727,930
Parking Charges 633,200
Local Taxation 299,890
Markets 199,780
Licensing 168,290
Land Charges 96,720
Environmental Services 153,550
Planning Services  55,720
Waste Collection  103,600

 
Total income from fees and charges is budgeted to be £5.789m in 2015/16. The 
economy is clearly still experiencing difficulties at the moment and recovery is 
expected to be slow.  A moderate fall in demand of say 3% would lead to a reduction 
in income of about £173,680.  

External Partnerships  

2.2.6  Members are aware that the Council acts as the 'Accountable Body' for a number of 
partnerships.  With the potential for these to grow in number the financial exposure 
increases, however it is felt that a contingency to deal with this is not required as there 
is sufficient funds in reserves.   

Responding to emergencies  

2.2.7  Examples of emergencies in the past include flooding and the outbreak of foot and 
mouth disease. As a local authority the Council can in certain cases gain financial 
protection from the Government's Bellwin Scheme.  However, this only reimburses 
85% of eligible expenditure above a specified threshold.  If further resources were 
required, it is felt that there are sufficient funds in reserves to cover these 
requirements.  

Capital financing and general cashflows  

2.2.8  The Council maintains a capital programme which is supported by external funding 
and on-going capital receipts.  The timing of such receipts rarely matches the 
expenditure profile, often lagging by months.  

2.2.9  Similarly the timing of the Council’s income, principally from Council Tax and Business 
Rate income, does not always match the Council’s outgoings (mainly salaries, capital 
and precept payments).  This is particularly the case in February and March when 
income from Council Tax and Business Rates reduces significantly as the normal 
instalments cease.  

Page 37



2.2.10  Consequently it is necessary to maintain a large amount for cash flow purposes, 
thereby reducing the need to frequently draw back funds. A sum of £1,000,000 is 
recommended for this purpose.  

2.2.11  On this basis it would appear that a General Fund Working Balance of around 
£2,000,000 is required.  It is recommended that the Council maintain a sum of 
£2,000,000 as its General Fund Working Balance. A level of £2m equates to 
approximately 4.5% of the Council's gross annual budget requirement.  This 
combined with the Council's internal financial controls should ensure the authority 
recognises financial 'issues' early and has the capacity to respond accordingly.  

2.3  Council Taxpayers Reserve  

2.3.1  The purpose of this reserve is currently “To support revenue spending on community 
projects and on enhancing service delivery”. It is recommended that the purpose of 
the Council Taxpayers Reserve is maintained.  

2.3.2  The level of the reserve is considered as part of every review of the financial strategy, 
and needs to be sufficient to fulfil its purpose over the life of the strategy. Clearly over 
time the level of the reserve will diminish.  However, in order for the Council Taxpayer 
to receive the maximum benefit from the reserve, this should be in a structured and 
considered way in accordance with expectations of the level of Council Tax assumed 
in the financial strategy.   

2.4  Repairs and Renewals Fund  

2.4.1  The purpose of this reserve is “To provide revenue support to assist funding of the 
repairs and renewals”. It is recommended that the purpose of the Repairs and 
Renewals Fund is maintained.  

2.4.2  The reserve was established from what was the Capital Fund with monies added to it 
from the Council Tax Payers Reserve.  The reserve will be maintained for the duration 
of the Financial Strategy.  

2.5  Computer Fund  

2.5.1  The purpose of this reserve is "To provide revenue support to assist funding of 
computer related purchases". It is recommended that the purpose of the 
Computer Fund is maintained.  

2.5.2  The reserve was established from monies transferred from the Council Tax Payers 
Reserve. It is recommended that the reserve will be maintained for the duration 
of the Financial Strategy.  

2.6  Community Safety Partnership Reserve  

2.6.1  The purpose of this reserve is currently “To receive surpluses and deficits from the 
Community Safety Partnership Accounts”.  It is recommended that the purpose of 
the Community Safety Partnership Reserve is maintained. 

 
2.6.2  The reserve is kept as good accounting practice and is not expected to have a 

significant balance in it.  

 
 
 
 

Page 38



 
2.7  One-Off Fund  

2.7.1  The purpose of this reserve is “To improve or sustain service delivery”.  It is 
recommended that the purpose of the One-Off Fund is maintained.   

2.7.2  This reserve is maintained to provide funding for service improvements or unexpected 
events. It incorporates the former Revenue Efficiency Reserve, Shared Service 
Efficiency Reserve and the Cyclical Payments Reserve. It is recommended therefore 
that the minimum balance on this Reserve be kept at £200,000. This is considered 
adequate, and is sustainable within the current financial strategy.  In normal 
circumstances, however, the level of the fund could be substantially higher than this.  

2.8  Strategic Forum Reserve  

2.8.1  The purpose of this reserve is currently “To bring together members of the public, 
private, voluntary and community sectors to take forward priorities of the districts 
identified in the Sustainable Community Strategy”.  It is recommended that the 
purpose of the Strategic Forum Reserve is maintained.  

2.8.2  The reserve is kept as good accounting practice and is not expected to have a 
significant balance in it.  

2.9  Grants Fund  

2.9.1 The purpose of this reserve is currently “To fund revenue grants to organisations on an 
annual basis”.  It is recommended that the purpose of the Grants Fund is 
maintained.  

2.9.2  The level of the fund was initially established to provide for three years funding, and will 
therefore have a reducing balance over the period.  It is expected that the fund will run 
low in funds by 2018/19 and therefore a review will be needed before this time.  

2.10 Economic Development Fund 

2.10.1 The purpose of this reserve is “To fund initiatives that support and encourage economic 
growth and stability in Hambleton”.  It is recommended that the purpose of the 
Economic Development Fund is maintained. 

2.10.2 This fund was established in 2014/15 with a balance of £5,000,000.  It is anticipated 
that this funding will last 10 years.    

2.11 Make a Difference Grants Fund 

2.11.1 The purpose of this reserve is “To invest in worthy local community projects which help 
improve life in neighbourhoods and which support the work of the voluntary sector”.  It 
is recommended that the purpose of the Make a Difference Grants Fund is 
maintained. 

2.11.2 This fund was established in 2014/15 with a balance of £125,000.  The balance of the 
fund will be used by 31 March 2016. 

 

3.0  LEVEL OF BALANCES AND RESERVES:  
 
3.1  The use of balances and reserves is a critical feature in the Council’s approach to 

financial management.  They enable Council Tax to be maintained at low levels, 
support the Capital Programme and deliver service improvements.  

Page 39



3.2  It is considered important therefore that the level of balances is monitored to ensure 
that adequate levels are maintained to fulfil their purpose.  To a large extent this is 
done through the Financial Strategy and also targets have been established where  
each Reserve has a year end balance which is within a 10% tolerance of the balance 
reflected in the Council’s financial strategy.  Performance against the target will 
continue to be reported to Members as part of the year end procedures.  

  
3.3 Experience has shown, however, that due to the nature of receipts and payments into 

and out of the One Off Fund, it is not possible to accurately forecast the level of this 
reserve at the year end.  A more appropriate target for this reserve would be to ensure 
that a minimum balance is retained. 

 
3.4 It is recommended that the targets for Reserve balances are: 
 

a) A minimum balance for the One-Off Fund of £200,000; and 
b) For all other Reserves, within a 10% tolerance on the year end balance as 

reflected in the Financial Strategy. 

  

Page 40



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015 
 
Subject: 2015/16 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET, TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

STRATEGY STATEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
All Wards 

Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 This report considers the 10 year Capital Programme covering the financial years 2015/16 

to 2024/25, the 2015/16 Capital Programme and the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement; including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement. 

 
1.2 The 10 year Capital Programme is set within the fiscal parameters of the Financial Strategy, 

a key feature of which is to ensure that at the end of the 10 year Strategy sufficient reserve 
funds – grants, contribution and capital receipts – remain available so that the Council has 
the option to continue with its principle of not borrowing to finance its own capital 
expenditure.  The Financial Strategy which supports the Capital Programme 2015/16 to 
2014/25 is being approved at this February 2015 Cabinet. 

 
1.3 It is a legal requirement under the Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Prudential 

Code to ensure that the Capital Programme is affordable, sustainable and prudent over a 
3 year period.   The 10 year Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2024/25 clearly adheres to this 
requirement and it should be noted that the 10 year Programme is an estimate.   

 
1.4 Prior to expenditure being incurred on any scheme a Value for Money project appraisal 

occurs for each project and the annual Capital Programme is approved at Council before 
the commencement of the new financial year.  The 2015/16 Capital Programme is detailed 
in this report. 

 
1.5 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement includes the Annual Investment Strategy 

and the Minimum Revenue Policy Statement and ensures that the funding of the Capital 
Programme is affordable, sustainable and prudent.  The Treasury Management Strategy 
manages the cash flow position of the Council on a long and short term basis to ensure that 
cash is available when needed and surplus funds are invested in with low risk 
counterparties (ensuring security of funding is key), providing adequate liquidity, whilst also 
considering investment return. 

 
1.6 The Capital Programme and Treasury Management Strategy are monitored through the 

setting of the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators on an annual basis prior to 
the beginning of the new financial year.  

 
1.7 This report seeks approval for  
 

(a) the 10 year Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2024/25  
(b) the Capital Programme for the coming financial year 2015/16, which is informed by the 

10 year Capital Programme 
(c) the Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2015/15 
(d) the Minimum Revenue Policy Statement 2015/16 
(e) the Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2014/15 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



 
 
2.0 10 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 to 2024/25: 
 
2.1 The 10 year Capital Programme 2015/16 to 202425 shows capital expenditure of 

£52,554,300, which is funded by reserves, contributions, capital receipts, borrowing and 
surplus funds of £60,755,855.   The Financial Strategy supports this 10 year Capital 
Programme which shows it is affordable, sustainable and prudent over the long term, 
leaving a balance of funding of £8,201,555.   

 
2.2 The 10 Year Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2024/25 is financed from 4 earmarked 

reserves as well as borrowing or reduction in surplus funds:  
                £ 

Repairs and Renewals Fund    5,900,000 
Computer Fund     2,660,000 
Capital Receipts Reserve    3,994,300 
Economic Development Fund   5,000,000 
Borrowing / Surplus Funds  35,000,000 

      52,554,300 
 

In essence, the Capital Programme is split into these four sections; the detailed Capital 
Programme is shown in Annexes A1, A2, A3 and A4. 
 

2.3 Repairs and Renewals Fund - Annex A1 details the funding available in the Repairs and 
Renewals Fund, together with a detailed estimate of the schemes that will utilise this 
funding over the next 10 years. This fund will be used to fund all repairs and renewals, 
including those in the revenue budget.  This practice will protect the repairs budget, as in 
the previous year, from being used to fund other items of expenditure and eliminate 
excessive spending at the end of the year. 

 
2.4 Computer Fund - Annex A2 details the funding available in the Computer Fund, together 

with an estimate of how this funding will be utilised over the next 10 years. No specific 
schemes are detailed other than the website project because it is envisaged that schemes 
will emerge from the review of all services over the next 12 – 18 months, which will provide 
the detail of the computer programme. 

 
2.5 The Repairs and Renewals Fund and Computer Fund at the end of the 10 year Strategy 

will require additional funding to be allocated to continue necessary investment.  This will 
be facilitated by income generation opportunities available to the Council and continued 
revenue efficiencies savings from existing budgets. 

 
2.6 Capital Receipts Reserve - Annex A3 details the funding available in the Capital Receipts 

Reserve, together with an estimate of future receipts and the detailed schemes to be 
financed from the Reserve over the next 10 years. The Capital Receipts Reserve has 
sufficient balances to continue to fund capital expenditure beyond the 10 year Capital 
Programme. 

 
2.7 Economic Development Fund – Annex A4 details the Economic Development Fund 

which was created in 2014/15 and £5,000,000 was allocated.  The Investment Plan was 
approved at Cabinet on 2 December 2014 and currently funding is allocated on an even 
basis £500,000 throughout the 10 year period.  Additional funding is allocated to the 
Economic Development Fund in 2023/24. 

 
 

Page 42



2.8 Borrowing / Surplus funds – On 16 December 2014 Cabinet approved the loan to 
Broadacres Housing Association to assist the local area in increasing housing opportunities 
for the community.  The maximum amount of the loan is potentially £35,000,000 and 
therefore, for the purpose of prudent provision, it is estimated that the total amount will be 
borrowed in the year 2015/16.  There is still the flexibility that surplus funds could contribute 
to the funding of the loan and both these options will be considered in the light of the 
treasury management economic and interest rate environment.  

 
2.9 In preparing the 10 year Capital Programme a number of schemes were put forward that 

were deemed not to be business critical at this time and therefore are not incorporated in 
the 10 year Capital Programme.  These schemes will be reassessed in the future and 
incorporated into future capital programmes, if they become business critical. 
 
 

3.0 2015/16 CAPITAL PROGRAMME BUDGET: 
 
3.1 The Capital Programme 2015/16 totals £36,854,300 and is funded as follows: 

        £ 
Repairs and Renewals Fund      751,000 
Computer Fund       277,000 
Capital Receipts Reserve   1,326,300 
Economic Development Fund     500,000 
Borrowing / Surplus Funds  35,000,000 

       37,854,300 
 

2.4 The Capital Programme 2015/16 is attached at Annex ‘B’.  This details the capital 
expenditure cost and also the total cost to the Council, along with associated funding 
received from third parties in respect of the schemes.  In addition, where a scheme appears 
for a number of years, an estimation of the costs in future years is also given.   

 
2.7 All schemes have been assessed to allow a considered and informed judgement to be 

made in respect of the Value for Money of each scheme.  It is believed that each scheme 
does represent value for money.  The reasons for this judgement are:- 

 
 each scheme contributes towards the attainment of a particular Business Plan target 

and a number have clear community benefits; 
 
 a number of schemes generate ongoing revenue savings; 
 
 although the cost of each scheme is indicative, prior to implementation each scheme 

will follow the Council's procurement process to ensure best value is achieved; 
 
 each scheme has a clear completion date. 

 
2.8 A proposal form for each scheme giving evidence of how value for money has been 

obtained has been reviewed by the Corporate Capital Monitoring Group, which is chaired 
by the Director of Support Services & Deputy Chief Executive and attended by the Director 
of Environmental Services and Director of Customer & Leisure Services.  

 
2.9 The 10 year Capital Programme and the 2015/16 Capital Programme will be used to inform 

the Treasury Management Strategy Statement, the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and the calculation of the Prudential Indicators as detailed in Paragraph 4.0 and 
subsequent paragraphs. 

 
 

Page 43



3.0 2014/15 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS:  
 
3.1 The Treasury Management Strategy sets out a framework for how the Council will manage 

its investments, cash flows and borrowings for 2015/16.  The Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement including the Annual Investment Strategy, the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators is 
attached at Annex ‘C’.  Specifically the Treasury Management Strategy:  

 
 Sets out the statutory and regulatory requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, 

the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounts) Prudential Code, the 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice and the Communities and Local 
Government Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance and also Investment Guidance; 

 
 Identifies reporting arrangements and responsibilities; 
 
 Clarifies the potential requirement to borrow only for the loan to Broadacres Housing 

Association; 
 
 Clearly states that the Council’s priorities for investment are the security of capital, 

whilst also considering liquidity and rate of return; 
 
 Identifies the type and the limits for investments and counterparties with which those 

investments can be placed as well as the maximum duration of the investment; 
 
 Calculates the Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators based on the Capital 

Programme funding requirements. 
 

3.2 Approval of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement is required by the Local 
Government Act and code of Practices as detailed above and advice has been taken from 
the Council's Treasury Management advisors, Capita Asset Services, in constructing this 
strategy. 

 
3.3 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2015/16 reflects the improved stability of 

the banking sector and the support given by national Governments, as well as a more risk 
averse approach to the system of credit ratings.   The proposed Strategy is influenced by 
the Capital expenditure plans for 2015/16 and the next 10 years.  It can be summarised as 
follows: 
 
 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement and the potential need to borrow only in 

relation to the loan to Broadacres Housing Association; 
 

 The minimum revenue provision policy is defined detaining the minimum revenue 
payments that are required to be made for the borrowing in relation to the Broadacres 
loan; 

 
 The Council continues with its investment priority as being the security of capital and 

also liquidity of its funds, whilst maximising returns commensurate with risk; 
 
 Investment of surplus funds can be made to other Local Authorities, nationalised 

Banks, Banks which are part of the UK banking system support package, as well as 
other UK Banks and Building Societies, subject to the application of Capita Asset 
Services’ credit worthiness criteria; 

 
 Investments of surplus funds can be made in foreign Banks and institutions of AA 

sovereign rated countries subject to Capita Asset Services’  credit worthiness criteria; 

Page 44



 Limits for all investments to be placed with specified and non specified investments 
are: 

 
Individual Limits – These limits will be set at 30% of total investments or £3.0m per 
counterparty whichever is the higher.  There are two exceptions to this policy: 
 

(a) with counterparties that are backed by the Government – Bank of Scotland, 
Royal Bank of Scotland, Lloyds, Natwest, Ulster Bank – (and therefore are more 
secure) there will be a 50% limit or £12m per counterparty whichever is the 
higher. 

 
(b) with the Debt Management Agency Deposit there will be an unlimited amount 

with this organisation due to its high level of security.   
 

It should be noted that it is expected during 2015/16, that the status of the current 
counterparties backed by the Government in (a) above may change.  If this occurs a 
report will be brought to Cabinet at the earliest opportunity with the revised limits. 

 
Group Limits – this policy recognises that individual counterparties (banks/financial 
institutions etc), whilst being sound in themselves, may be part of a larger group.  
This brings with it added risks where parent institutions may be in difficulties.  
However, if the group limit was the same as the individual limit it would be too 
restrictive for the placing of investments when applied to our list of approved 
counterparties. This policy therefore sets the group limit at 60% of fund value.  
Individual limits for any counterparty within the group will be as stated above.  There 
is one exception to this policy  
 

(a) where the group is for Government backed institutions the group limit will be 80% 
of the fund value.  

 
3.5 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2015/16 also includes the revised Treasury 

Management Policy Statement which is attached at Annex ‘D’ and is recommended to be 
approved by Cabinet and Council in accordance with the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management Code of Practice 2011. 

 
3.6 The Scheme of Delegation and the Role of the S151 Officer (Director of Support Services & 

Deputy Chief Executive), in relation to Treasury Management, details that those charged 
with governance are responsible for Treasury Management activities within the 
organisation, this is attached at Annex ‘E’ and is recommended to be approved by Cabinet 
and Council. 

 
3.7 The Prudential and Treasury Management Indicators are detailed in the main body of the 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement attached at Annex ‘C’.  It is recommended that 
the Prudential and Treasury Management indicators are approved by Cabinet and Council. 

 
 
4.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
4.1 This report links to the efficient use of Council resources, where the Capital 

Programme 2015/16 demonstrates value for money in the implementation of the individual 
capital schemes and the Treasury Management Strategy Statement ensure the Council 
maximises its return on investments.  Both the Capital Programme and Treasury 
Management allow more resources to be freed up to invest in the Council’s other priorities, 
values and imperatives.  

 

Page 45



5.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
 
5.1 There are two main risks associated with setting the Capital Programme and the Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement 2015/16:   
 

Risk Implication Prob Imp Total Preventative action 
Proposed capital 
schemes for 
2015/16 are not 
assessed for risk 
prior to the 
commencement of 
the schemes 

The Council is 
unable to 
control capital 
expenditure or 
redirect 
resources to 
priority areas 
 

3 5 15 Capital Scheme Proposal 
Forms are prepared for 
each individual capital 
scheme, including the 
assessment of risk. 

Treasury 
management 
function is a high 
risk area due to the 
volume and level of 
large investment 
money transactions.  

The value of the 
investment 
could be lost, 
liquidity of the 
Council could 
be reduced and 
yield not 
maximised. 

3 5 15 The Local Government 
Act 2003 (as amended), 
supporting regulations, 
the CIPFA Prudential 
Code and the CIPFA 
Treasury Management in 
the Public Services Code 
of Practice (the code) are 
all adhered to as required 
 

   Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
6.1 The financial implications are contained within the body of the report.  
 
 
7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
7.1 The Council is legally required to set a balanced 3 year Capital Programme budget and 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement as set out in Local Government Act 2003.  This 
Council has set a 10 Year Capital Plan to assist with medium term financial planning, 
budget and Council Tax setting for 2015/16 and future years.  This report provides detail of 
the Capital programme 2015/15 and also includes the requirements for the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement. 

 
7.2 Treasury Management activities have to conform to the Local Government Act 2003, the 

Local Authorities (Capital; Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (SI 
2003/3146), which specifies that the Council is required to have regard to the CIPFA 
Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice and also the Local 
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 (SI 
2008/414), which clarifies the requirements of the Minimum Revenue Provision guidance. 

 
 
8.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES: 
  
8.1 Some capital schemes have specific implications for Equalities.  The equalities implications 

of the individual schemes will be assessed by individual departments once the Capital 
Programme 2015/16 has been approved and the schemes are further developed. Any 
implications will be identified in the individual schemes project plans. 

Page 46



 
9.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:      
 
9.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves and recommends to Council that:- 
 

1) the 10 year Capital Programme 2015/16 to 2016/17 at £52,554,300 be approved, as 
detailed in paragraph 2.2 and attached at Annex ‘A’;  

 
2) The Capital Programme 2015/16 at £37,854,300 detailed in Annex ‘B’ be approved for 

implementation; 
 
3) the Treasury Management Strategy attached at Annex ‘C’ be approved; 

 
4) the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement attached in the body of the Treasury 

Management Strategy Statement Annex ‘C’ be approved; 
 
5) the Prudential and Treasury Indicators attached at Annex ‘C’ in the body of the 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement be approved; 
 

6) the revised Treasury Management Policy Statement at Annex ‘D’ be approved; 
 

7) the Scheme of Delegation and role of the S151 Officer attached at Annex ‘E’ be 
approved. 

 
 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
Background papers:  None   
 
Author ref:   LBW 
 
Contact:   Louise Branford-White     

Head of Resources 
    Direct Line No: 01609 767024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100215 Capital Prog and TMSS 201516 

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



ANNEX ‘C’ 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT -  
MINIMUM REVENUE POSITION STRATEGY and 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2015/16 
  
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION: 
 
1.1 Background 
 
1.1.1  The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 

raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  The first part of the Treasury 
Management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash 
being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties 
or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

 
1.1.2  The second main function of the Treasury Management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet 
its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.   On occasion 
any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  

 
1.1.3  CIPFA defines Treasury Management as: 

 
“The management of the Local Authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. ” 

 
1.2 Reporting Requirements 
 
1.2.1 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports each 

year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.  In addition quarterly 
review reports provide a regular update to cabinet.  

 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (This report) 

1.2.2 The first, and most important report covers: 

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

 a Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure is charged to 
revenue over time); 

 the Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to be 
organised) including treasury indicators; and  

 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed). 
 

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report 

1.2.3 This will update Members with the progress of the capital position, amending prudential 
indicators as necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or 
whether any policies require revision.  In addition, this Council will receive quarterly update 
reports. 

 

 

Page 53



An Annual Treasury Report 

1.2.4 This provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators, including 
investment activity, and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the 
strategy. 

1.2.5 The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by Members before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by Cabinet. 

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16 
 
1.3.1 The strategy for 2015/16 covers two main areas: 
 

(a) Capital Issues 
 the capital plans and the prudential indicators 
 the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy 

 
(b) Treasury Management Issues 

 the current treasury position 
 treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council 
 prospects for interest rates 
 the borrowing strategy 
 policy on borrowing in advance of need 
 debt rescheduling 
 the investment strategy 
 credit worthiness policy 
 policy on use of external service providers 
 Member training 

 
1.3.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 

Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and and the Communities and 
Local Government Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance and also Investment guidance. 

 
 
2.0 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 – 2017/18: 
 
2.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of Treasury Management activity.  

The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist Members overview and confirm their understanding of the Capital 
Programme.  
 
Capital Expenditure 

 
2.2 This prudential Indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both 

those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.  Members are asked 
to approve the capital expenditure forecasts. 
 
Capital Expenditure 

 

2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Total  3,087,427 37,937,300 1,602,000 1,541,000 

 
2.3 Other long term liabilities.  The above financing need excludes other long term liabilities, 

such as PFI and leasing arrangements which already include borrowing instruments.  The 
Council has no PFI schemes. 

2.4 The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any shortfall of resources results in a 

Page 54



funding need (borrowing).  In 2015/16, borrowing may occur only to fund the loan the 
Council is proposing to make to Broadacres Housing Association. 

Capital Expenditure 

£000 

2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Total  3,087,427 37,937,300 1,602,000 1,541,000 

Financed by:          

Capital receipts  1,181,695 1,006,300 157,100 92,100 

Capital grants  285,704 320,000 107,900 107,900 

Capital reserves  1,620,028 1,571,000 1,297,000 1,301,000 

Revenue  0 40,000 40,000 40,000 

Net financing need 
for the year 

 
- 35,000,000 - - 

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

2.5 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The 
CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 
for from either revenue or capital resources and also includes any capital expenditure to be 
funded from borrowing in future years.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 
underlying borrowing need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately 
been paid for, will increase the CFR.     

2.6 The CFR does not increase indefinitely as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with 
each assets life. 

2.7 For the past few years, the CFR has remained at zero as the Council has been debt free 
and has had no underlying borrowing requirement.  In 2015/16, due to the loan to 
Broadacres Housing Association the CFR will increase by the total amount of that loan.  
The total amount that can be loaned has been used in the estimate of the CFR as this is 
the prudent position, as it provides the Council with the flexibility to use borrowing for the 
total amount of the loan if it chooses to do so but still allows the use of surplus funds.  At 
the time the loan is taken consideration will be given to the Treasury Management 
environment to ensure that the best option to fund the loan to Broadacres Housing 
Association is taken. 

2.8 The CFR also includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases).  
Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these 
types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to separately 
borrow for these schemes.  The Council currently has no such schemes within the CFR.   

2.9 The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:- 
 

 2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Capital Financing Requirement 

CFR – non housing - 0 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000

CFR - housing - 0 0 0 0 

Total CFR - - 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000

Movement in CFR - 0 35,000,000 0 0 

Page 55



 2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need for 
the year (above) 

- 
0 35,000,000 0 0 

Less MRP and other 
financing movements 

- 
0 0 0 0 

Movement in CFR 0 0 35,000,000 0 0 

 

Minimum Revenue provision (MRP) Policy Statement 

2.10 It is a statutory requirement that the Council reports on the Minimum Revenue Position and 
explains this policy.  The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy describes that the Council is 
required to pay off part of the Capital Financing Requirement (the accumulated General 
Fund capital expenditure) on a regular basis through a revenue charge known as the 
Minimum Revenue Provision – MRP.  This is an amount which the Council deems to be a 
prudent provision to reduce its borrowing.  In addition to MRP, the Council is also allowed 
to undertake additional voluntary payments if it so decides. This is known as the Voluntary 
Revenue Provision - VRP.   

2.11 This Council in 2015/16 will have a Capital Financing Requirement in relation to the 
potential borrowing that will occur as a result of the capital expenditure incurred for the loan 
to Broadacres Housing Association.   

2.12 Communities of Local Government (CLG) Regulations have been issued which require the 
Full Council to approve a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement in advance of 
each year.  Under guidance issued by CLG, there are four options provided to Councils so 
each Council can select the most appropriate policy to be adopted, so long as there is a 
prudent provision.  The four options available are listed below.  The Council is 
recommended to approve the following Minimum Revenue Provision Statement: 

2.13 For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008, or which in the future will be 
Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

 Based on CFR – MRP will be based on the CFR.  This option provides for an 
approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (CFR) each year.   

 
2.14 From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance leases) the 

MRP policy will be: 
 

 Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any expenditure 
capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction).  This option provides for a reduction in 
the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s life.   

2.15 Repayments included in finance leases are applied as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), 
though this Council does not expect to have these repayments in 2015/16 or in the 
foreseeable future.  

2.16 The Capital Financing Requirement for the loan to Broadacres Housing Association will be 
a maximum of £35,000,000 in 2015/16.  In the agreement with Broadacres Housing 
Association, they will make bullet repayments to the Council at years 5, 10, 15, 20 and 25.    
The bullet repayments made throughout the life of the loan will be set aside by the Council 
when received to ensure that prudent provision is made for regular repayment.  These 
regular bullet points will be earmarked and used as the Minimum Revenue Provision that 
the Council needs to make on a regular basis to reduce the Capital Financing Requirement.  

Page 56



Therefore, if £35,000,000 is loaned to Broadacres in 2015/16, the first time the MRP charge 
will be made to the revenue account to reduce the level of CFR will be 2019/20 and at 
regular intervals thereafter. 

Core funds and expected investment balances 

2.17 The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 
(asset sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each 
resource and anticipated day to day cash flow balances.  Working capital balances 
(Debtors and Creditors) shown in the table are estimated for year end; these may fluctuate 
during the year.  In 2016/17 and 2017/18 it should be noted that if the Council does not 
borrow £35,000,000 to fund the Broadacres Housing Association loan and instead uses its 
own core fund resources, then the ‘Expected Investments’ balances in the table below 
would be lower. 

 Year End Resources 

£000 

2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Fund balances / reserves  16,594,871 16,329,284 16,567,545 16,555,605 

Capital receipts  3,068,796 2,538,517 2,793,417 2,711,317 

Provisions  - - - - 

Other  36,333 132,199 39,038 33,078 

Total core funds  19,700,000 19,000,000 19,400,000 19,300,000 

Under/over borrowing  - - - - 

Expected investments  19,700,000 19,000,000 19,400,000 19,300,000 

 

Affordability Prudential Indicators 

2.18 The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the impact of 
the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked to 
approve the following indicators: 

2.19 Actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.  This 
indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation 
costs) against the net revenue stream. 

 
% 2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Non-HRA - - - - - 
 
2.20 The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this 

report.  The table shows that there is no ratio between the capital cost and net revenue 
stream because the borrowing which will potentially be undertaken is for the loan to 
Broadacres Housing Association. Ultimately this will not be a cost to the Council as the 
agreement between the Council and Broadacres will cover the costs incurred. 

 
2.21 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax. 

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the three 
year Capital Programme compared to the Council’s existing approved commitments and 
current plans.  The assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably include some 
estimates, such as the level of Government support, which are not published over a three 
year period. 

Page 57



 
2.22 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the Band D Council Tax 
 

£ 2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Council tax - 
band D 

£0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 

 

3.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: 

3.1 The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of 
the Council.  The Treasury Management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 
organised in accordance with the the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is 
available to meet this service activity.  This will involve both the organisation of the cash 
flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of approporiate borrowing facilities.  
The strategy covers the relevant treasury/prudential indicators, the current and projected 
debt positions and the annual investment strategy. 

 
3.2 Current Portfolio Position on Borrowing 
 

3.2.1 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2014 with forward projections is  
summarised below.  The table shows the actual external debt (the Treasury Management 
operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.  This Council currently is 
debt free in 2014/15.  In 2015/16 if a loan is made to Broadacres Housing Association then 
the maximum amount of debt that would be borrowed would be £35,000,000.  This is 
reflected in the table below:   

£m 2013/14 

Actual 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

External Debt 

Debt at 1 April  0 0 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000
Expected change in Debt 0 0 35,000,000 0 0 
Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 0 0 0 0 0 

Expected change in OLTL 0 0 0 0 0 

Actual debt at 31 March  - - 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000

The Capital Financing 
Requirement - - 35,000,000 35,000,000 35,000,000

Under / (over) 
borrowing - - - - - 

 
Total investments at  31 March 

Investments 23,950,000 19,700,000 19,000,000 19,400,000 19,300,000

Investment change  -4,250,000 -700,000 400,000 -100,000 

 

Net Debt / (Net 
Investment) (23,950,000) (19,700,000) 16,000,000 15,600,000 15,700,000

 

 

Page 58



3.2.2 Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the 
Council operates its activities within well defined limits.  One of these is that the Council 
needs to ensure that its gross debt, does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2015/16 and the 
following two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future 
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.       

3.2.3 The Director of Support Services & Deputy Chief Executive (Section 151 Officer) reports 
that the Council complied with this prudential indicator in the current year 2014/15 and does 
not envisage difficulties for the future.  This view takes into account current commitments, 
existing plans, and the proposals in the budget report. 

3.3 Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 

3.3.1 The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 
expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be 
lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt.  Prior to 2015/16, the Council was 
debt free and had no borrowing, however, to give the Council complete flexibility these 
limits are always set at the beginning of each financial year.  In addition to these flexibility 
requirements in 2015/16 the possibility of borrowing £35,000,000 to fund the loan to 
Broadacres Housing Association is also included in the operational boundary. 

Operational boundary  2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Debt 4,000,000 39,000,000 39,000,000 39,000,000 
Other long term liabilities 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 
Total 4,600,000 39,600,000 39,600,000 39,600,000 

 
3.3.2 The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator represents a 

control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a limit beyond which external 
debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the 
level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term.   

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government 
Act 2003.  The Government retains an option to control either the total of all Councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific Council, although this power has never yet been exercised. 

2. The Council is asked to approve the following Authorised Limit.  This limit is set to give 
the Council complete flexibility and also to encompass the maximum amount of 
borrowing that could occur for the borrowing in connection with the loan to Broadacres 
Housing Association: 

Authorised limit £000 2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

2017/18 

Estimate 

Debt 5,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000 
Other long term liabilities 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 
Total 6,000,000 41,000,000 41,000,000 41,000,000 

 
3.4 Prospects for Interest Rates 
 
3.4.1 The Council has appointed Capita Asset Services as its Treasury Advisor and part of their 

service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  The following table 
gives Capita Asset Services central interest rate view. 

 

Page 59



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.4.2 UK GDP growth surged during 2013 and the first half of 2014.  Since then it appears to have 
subsided somewhat but still remains strong by UK standards and is expected to continue 
likewise into 2015 and 2016. There needs to be a significant rebalancing of the economy away 
from consumer spending to manufacturing, business investment and exporting in order for this 
recovery to become more firmly established. One drag on the economy has been that wage 
inflation has only recently started to exceed CPI inflation, so enabling disposable income and 
living standards to start improving. 

3.4.3 The plunge in the price of oil brought CPI inflation down to a low of 1.0% in November, the 
lowest rate since September 2002.  Inflation is expected to stay around or below 1.0% for the 
best part of a year; this will help improve consumer disposable income and so underpin 
economic growth during 2015.  However, labour productivity needs to improve substantially  to 
enable wage rates to increase and further support consumer disposable income and economic 
growth. In addition, the encouraging rate at which unemployment has been falling must 
eventually feed through into pressure for wage increases, though current views on the amount 
of hidden slack in the labour market probably means that this is unlikely to happen early in 2015. 

3.4.4 The US, the biggest world economy, has generated stunning growth rates of 4.6% (annualised) 
in Qarter 2 2014 and 5.0% in Quarter 3.  This is hugely promising for the outlook for strong 
growth going forwards and it very much looks as if the US is now firmly on the path of full 
recovery from the financial crisis of 2008.  Consequently, it is now confidently expected that the 
US will be the first major western economy to start on central rate increases by mid 2015.   

3.4.5 The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and government debt yields 
have several key Treasury Management implications: 

 
 Greece: the General Election on 25 January 2015 brough to power a political party to power 

which is anti EU and anti austerity.  However, if this eventually results in Greece leaving the 
Euro, it is unlikely that this will directly destabilise the Eurozone as the EU has put in place 
adequate firewalls to contain the immediate fallout to just Greece.  However, the indirect 
effects of the likely strenthening of anti EU and anti austerity political parties throughout the EU 
is much more difficult to quantify;  

 As for the Eurozone in general, concerns in respect of a major crisis subsided considerably in 
2013.  However, the downturn in growth and inflation during the second half of 2014, and 
worries over the Ukraine situation, Middle East and Ebola, have led to a resurgence of those 
concerns as risks increase that it could be heading into deflation and prolonged very weak 
growth.  Sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major concerns could return in 
respect of individual countries that do not dynamically address fundamental issues of low 
growth, international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy (as 
Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the next few years that levels of Government 
debt to GDP ratios could continue to rise to levels that could result in a loss of investor 
confidence in the financial viability of such countries.  Counterparty risks therefore remain 

Annual 
Average % 

Bank Rate 
% 

PWLB Borrowing Rates % 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 
Mar 2015 0.50 2.20 3.40 3.40 
Jun 2015 0.50 2.20 3.50 3.50 
Sep 2015 0.50 2.30 3.70 3.70 
Dec 2015 0.75 2.50 3.80 3.80 
Mar 2016 0.75 2.60 4.00 4.00 
Jun 2016 1.00 2.80 4.20 4.20 
Sep 2016 1.00 2.90 4.30 4.30 
Dec 2016 1.25 3.00 4.40 4.40 
Mar 2017 1.25 3.20 4.50 4.50 
Jun 2017 1.50 3.30 4.60 4.60 
Sep 2017 1.75 3.40 4.70 4.70 
Dec 2017 1.75 3.50 4.70 4.70 
Mar 2018 2.00 3.60 4.80 4.80 

Page 60



elevated.  This continues to suggest the use of higher quality counterparties for shorter time 
periods; 

 Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2015/16 and beyond; 

 Borrowing interest rates have been volatile during 2014 as alternating bouts of good and bad 
news  have promoted optimism, and then pessimism, in financial markets.  The closing weeks 
of 2014 saw gilt yields dip to historically remarkably low levels after inflation plunged, a flight to 
quality from equities (especially in the oil sector), and from the debt and equities of oil 
producing emerging market countries, and an increase in the likelihood that the ECB will 
commence quantitative easing (purchase of EZ Government debt) in early 2015.  The policy of 
avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has served well over the last 
few years.  However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing 
costs in later times, when authorities will not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance new 
capital expenditure and/or to refinance maturing debt; 

 There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an increase in 
investments as this will incur a revenue loss between borrowing costs and investment returns. 

3.5 Borrowing Strategy for 2015/16 
 
3.5.1 The Council in 2014/15 is debt free, however in 2015/16 a loan to Broadacres would 

increase the Council’s capital expenditure and therefore there may be the requirement to 
undertake borrowing to support this.  The maximum amount of borrowing that would be 
incurred is £35,000,000.  Alternatively, the Council may choose to use some of its surplus 
funds to fund the loan to Broadacres Housing Association and if this occurred the Council 
would be maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that the capital borrowing need 
(the Capital Financing Requirement), will not be fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting 
the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This 
strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high. 

 
3.5.2 If the Council does undertake borrowing then interst rates will be viewed from 1 year to 50 years, 

in accordance with the interest rates available from the markets as well as the Governments 
Public Works Loans Board.  For 2015/16 interest rates span between 5 years at 2.2% and 25 or 
50 years at 4%.  The interest rates trend is to increase across all years as the 2015/16 year 
progresses.  Therefore, in the currnet volatile money market, the borrowing target rate for 
2015/16 is set at 3.8%.  External borrowing will be considered throughout the financial year 
when interest rates seem most favourable. 

 
3.5.3 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted with 

the 2015/16 treasury operations.  The Director of Finance will monitor  interest rates in financial 
markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances: 

 
 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short term rates (e.g. 

due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then 
long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding 
into short term borrowing will be considered. 

 
 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and short term 

rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a greater than expected increase in 
the anticipated rate to US tapering of asset purchases, or in world economic activity or a 
sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the likely 
action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are still lower than they will be 
in the next few years. 

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate to Cabinet at the next available opportunity. 
 
 
 

Page 61



Treasury Management Limits on Activity 
 

3.5.3 There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are to restrain 
the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing 
the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates.  However, if these are set to be too 
restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The 
indicators are:- 

 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit for 
variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments; 

 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the previous indicator 
and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set in place to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are 
required for upper and lower limits. 

3.5.3 The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits in the table 
below.  These limits take into account the potential borrowing of £35,000,000 to fund the 
loan to Broadacres Housing Association and also provide the flexibility for additional 
borrowing where there may be a rare occasion when overnight temporary borrowing needs 
to occur.  It should be noted that at this stage options have been left open when borrowing 
will occur for the loan to Broadacres due to the current volatility in the market. 

 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Interest rate Exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 108% 116% 122% 

Limits on variable interest 
rates based on net debt -8% -16% -22% 

Limits on Fixed Interest 
Rates: 

   

 Debt only 100% 100% 100% 

 Investments Only 90% 90% 90% 

Limits on Variable Interest 
Rates 

   

 Debt only 10% 10% 10% 

 Investments Only 50% 50% 50% 

Maturity Structure of interest rate borrowing 2014/15 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 100% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 100% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 years to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 100% 

Page 62



 
3.6 Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need 
 
3.6.1 In 2015/16 borrowing is likely to occur to fund the loan to broadacres Housing Association 

but not for any other purpose as in 2014/15 and the previous year the Council has been 
debt free.  It is not anticipated therefore that there will be a need to borrow in advance of 
need during 2015/16.  If the Council does borrow in advance of need it will not borrow 
more, than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit from the investment of the 
extra sums borrowed.  Any decision to borrow in advance will be within forward approved 
Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that 
value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such 
funds.  

 
3.6.2 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal 

and subsequent reporting through the quarterly, mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.  
 
3.7 Debt Rescheduling 
 
3.7.1 The Council up to 2014/15 has no debt outstanding and therefore does not need to 

consider debt rescheduling as part of this Strategy.  

3.8 Municipal Bond Agency 

3.8.1 It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being set up, will be 
offering loans to Local Authorities in the near future.  It is also hoped that the borrowing rates will 
be lower than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB).  This Authority could 
therefore potentially make use of this new source of borrowing as and when appropriate to fund 
all or part of the borrowing for the loan to Broadacres Housing Association. 

 
3.9 Annual Investment Strategy 
 
3.9.1 Investment Policy –  
 
3.9.2 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s  Guidance on Local Government 

Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in Public 
Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The 
Council’s investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second, then return. 

  
3.9.10 In accordance with the above guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in order to minimise the 

risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a 
list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 
concentration risk. 

 

3.9.11 The Council’s Treasury Management Advisor – Capita Asset Services – advises the Council on 
creditworthiness methodology which uses creditcritaria from the three main rating agencies 
(Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s).  The main rating agencies, through much of the 
financial crisis, provided some institutions with a ratings “uplift” due to implied levels of sovereign 
support. More recently, in response to the evolving regulatory regime, the agencies have 
indicated they may remove these “uplifts”. This process may commence during 2014/15 and / or 
2015/16. The actual timing of the changes is still subject to discussion, but this does mean 
immediate changes to the credit methodology are required in this Investment Strategy. 

3.9.12 It is important to stress that the rating agency changes do not reflect any changes in the 
underlying status of the institution or credit environment, merely the implied level of sovereign 
support that has been built into ratings through the financial crisis. The eventual removal of 
implied sovereign support will only take place when the regulatory and economic environments 
have ensured that financial institutions are much stronger and less prone to failure in a financial 
crisis. 

Page 63



3.9.13 Both Fitch and Moody’s provide “standalone” credit ratings for financial institutions. For Fitch, it is 
the Viability Rating, while Moody’s has the Financial Strength Rating. Due to the future removal 
of sovereign support from institution assessments, both agencies have suggested going forward 
that these will be in line with their respective Long Term ratings. As such, there is no point 
monitoring both Long Term and these “standalone” ratings.  

3.9.14 Furthermore, Fitch has already begun assessing its Support ratings, with a clear expectation that 
these will be lowered to 5, which is defined as “A bank for which there is a possibility of external 
support, but it cannot be relied upon.” With all institutions likely to drop to these levels, there is 
little to no differentiation to be had by assessing Support ratings.  

3.9.15 As a result of these rating agency changes, the credit element of the future rating methodology 
will focus solely on the Short and Long Term ratings of an institution. Rating Watch and Outlook 
information will continue to be assessed where it relates to these categories. This is the same 
process for Standard & Poor’s that we have always taken, but a change to the use of Fitch and 
Moody’s ratings. Furthermore, we will continue to utilise credit default swap prices as an overlay 
to ratings in the new methodology.  

 
3.9.16 Continuing regulatory changes in the banking sector are designed to see greater stability, lower 

risk and the removal of expectations of Government financial support should an institution fail.  
This withdrawal of implied sovereign support is anticipated to have an effect on ratings applied to 
institutions.  This will result in the key ratings used to monitor counterparties being the Short 
Term and Long Term ratings only.  Viability, Financial Strength and Support Ratings previously 
applied will effectively become redundant.  This change does not reflect deterioration in the 
credit environment but rather a change of method in response to regulatory changes.   

 
3.9.17 As with previous practice, ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution 

and that it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and 
macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions 
operate. The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the 
markets. To this end the Council will engage with Capita Asset Services – its Treasury 
Managment Advisors - to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” 
and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.  

 
3.9.18 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other such 

information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny 
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties. 
 

3.9.19 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Annex C1 under the 
‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as set through 
the Council’s Treasury Management practices – schedules.  

 
3.9.20 With regards to counterparty limts and the amount of surplus funds to be placed with any 

one counterparty or group of counterparties, specific advice has been taken from the 
Council’s Treasury Management Advisors (Capital Asset Services) due to the difficulty in 
placing surplus funds in the current economic environment.  Therefore the Counterparty 
limits are detailed as follows: 

 
 Individual Limits – These limits will be set at 30% of total investments or £3.0m per 

counterparty whichever is the higher.  There are two exceptions to this policy: 
 

(a)  with counterparties that are backed by the Government – Bank of Scotland, Royal 
Bank of Scotland, Lloyds, Natwest, Ulster Bank – (and therefore are more secure) 
there will be a 50% limit or £12m per counterparty whichever is the higher. 

 
(b)  with the Debt Management Agency Deposit there will be an unlimited amount with 

this organisation due to its high level of security.  
 

Page 64



Y Pi1 Pi2 P B O R G N/C

1 1.25 1.5 2 3 4 5 6 7

Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 2yrs Up to 1yr Up to 1yr Up to 6mths Up to 100days No Colour

3.9.21 It should be noted that it is expected during 2015/16, that the status of the current 
counterparties backed by the Government in (a) above may change.  If this occurs a report 
will be brought to Cabinet at the earliest opportunity with the revised limits. 

 
 Group Limits – this policy recognises that individual counterparties (banks/financial 

institutions etc), whilst being sound in themselves, may be part of a larger group.  This 
brings with it added risks where parent institutions may be in difficulties.  However, if the 
group limit was the same as the individual limit it would be too restrictive for the placing 
of investments when applied to our list of approved counterparties. This policy therefore 
sets the group limit at 60% of fund value.  Individual limits for any counterparty within the 
group will be as stated above.  There is one exception to this policy: 

  
(a)  where the group is for Government backed institutions the group limit will be 80% of 

the fund value.   
 

3.10 Creditworthiness policy 
 

3.10.1 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset Services – the 
Council’s Treasury Management Advisors.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling 
approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following 
overlays:  

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries. 
 
3.10.2 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in a 

weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of Credit Default Swap (CDS) 
spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are used by the Council to determine 
the suggested duration for investments.  The Council will therefore use counterparties within the 
following durational bands: 

 
 Yellow   5 years for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, money market funds and  
     collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK Government debt 
 Dark pink   5 years for Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs) with a credit score of 1.25 
 Light pink   5 years for Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs) with a credit score of 1.5 
 Purple     2 years 
 Blue     1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 
 Orange    1 year 
 Red     6 months 
 Green     100 days   
 No colour  not to be used  

 
 
 
 
 

 
3.10.3 Our creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just primary ratings and 

using a risk weighted scoring system does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s 
ratings. 

 
3.10.4 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term rating (Fitch or 

equivalents) of   F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be occasions when the 
counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may still 

Page 65



be used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings available, 
or other topical market information, to support their use. 

 
3.10.5 All credit ratings will be monitored weekly. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all 

three agencies through its use of our creditworthiness service.  

 if a downgrade results in the counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 
immediately. 

 in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other market 
data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an 
institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

3.10.6 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this Council will 
also use market data and market information, information on sovereign support for banks and 
the credit ratings of that supporting Government. 

 
3.11 Country Limits 
 
3.11.1 The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from countries 

with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch (or equivalent), other than the UK 
where the Council has set no limit.  The list of countries that qualify using this AAA credit 
criteria, as at the date of this report, are shown in Annex C2.  This list will be added to, or 
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. 

 
3.11.2 On 22 February 2013, the UK lost its AAA sovereign rating and is now rated AA+.  

However, following advice from Capita Asset Services, the Council's Treasury Management 
Advisors, the Council will still operate with UK counterparties. 

 
3.11.3 The Council has determined that, other than the United Kingdom where no limit will applies, 

a maximum of 30% of total investments or £3.0m whichever is the lower will be invested in 
a single institution of a AAA sovereign rated country 

 
3.11.4 In addition, this policy restricts the total of investments in foreign countries to 40% of the 

total investments. 
 
3.12 Investment Strategy 
 
3.12.1 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash 

flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up 
to 12 months).    

 
3.12.2 Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged at  0.5% 

before starting to rise from Quarter 4 of 2015.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends 
(March) are:  

 
 2015/2016  0.75% 
 2016/2017  1.25% 
 2017/2018  2.00% 
 2016/2017  1.25% 

3.12.3 There are downside risks to these forecasts - i.e. start of increases in Bank Rate occurs later - if 
economic growth weakens.  However, should the pace of growth quicken, there could be an 
upside risk. 

 
 
 

Page 66



 
 
3.12.4 The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed forperiods 

up to 100 days during each financial year for the next eight years are as follows:  
 

 2015/16  0.60% 
 2016/17  1.25% 
 2017/18  1.75% 
 2018/19  2.25% 
 2019/20  2.75% 
 2020/21  3.00% 
 2021/22  3.25% 
 2022/23  3.25% 
 Later years 3.50% 

 
3.12.5 Invesment Treasury Indicator and Limit - total principal funds invested for greater than 

364 days.  These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to 
reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds 
after each year-end. 

 
3.12.6 The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: - 
 

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£000 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Principal sums invested > 
364 days 

 
£9,000,000 

 
£9,000,000 

 
£9,000,000 

 
3.12.7 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its Business Reserve 

Instant Access and Notice accounts, money market funds and short dated deposits 
(overnight to 100 days) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest. 

 
3.13 Investment Risk Benchmarking – The Council is a member of Capital Asset Services 

Treasury Management Benchmarking Club to assist in the measuring of Treasury 
Management performance which enables comparison with other Council’s for risk and 
return.  This will be reported to Memebrs on a quarterly basis during the 2015/16 financial 
year. 

3.14 End of year investment report -  At the end of the 2015/16 financial year, the Council will 
report on its investment activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report.  

4.1 Policy on the Use of External Service Providers – the Council uses Capital Asset 
services as its external Treasury Management advisors.  The Council recognises that 
responsibility for Treasury Management decisions remains with the Council at all times and 
will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our external service providers.  It is also 
recognised that there is value in employing external providers of Treasury Management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will 
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be 
assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. 

 
4.2 Member Training – Members with responsibility for Treasury Management will be provided 

with training in Treasury management.  This especially applies to Members responsible for 
scrutiny.  This training can be carried out by Council Officers and / or Capita Asset Services 
- the Council's Treasury Management advisors.  The training needs of Treasury 
Management officers are also periodically reviewed.  

 
 

Page 67



       ANNEX C1 

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE – TMP1 

CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK MANAGEMENT 
- SPECIFIED AND NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS AND LIMITS 

 
 
1.0 SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: 
 
1.1 All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum of 

1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 
 
2.0 NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: 
 
2.1 These are any investments which do not meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A 

maximum of 80% will be held in aggregate in non-specified investment 
 
3.0 INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS: 
 
3.1 A variety of investment instruments will be used, subject to the credit quality of the 

institution, and depending on the type of investment made, it will fall into one of the above 
categories. 

 
3.2 The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment vehicles 

are: 
 

 A) – SPECIFIED  
 

Institution / Counterparty 
Minimum ‘High’ Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility 
 

UK Sovereign rating 
 
 

In-house 
 
 

Term deposits – local authorities  
 

UK Sovereign rating 
 

In-house 
 

Term deposits – banks and building  
societies  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1+, Long-
term AA- Or equivalent 
rating from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 
 

In-house  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UK Part nationalised banks 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Blue on Capital 
Asset Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1+, Long-
term AA- Or equivalent 
rating from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 

In-house and Fund 
Mangers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



Banks part nationalised by high credit 
rated (sovereign rating) countries – 
non UK 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Blue on Capital 
Asset Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Long-term AAA,  
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & Poors 
and Moody’s 
 

In-house and Fund 
Mangers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Collateralised deposit 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix / 
UK Sovereign rating 
 

In-house and Fund 
Mangers 
 
 
 

Certificates of deposits issued by 
banks and building societies covered 
by UK Government guarantee 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix / 
UK Sovereign rating 
 

In-house and Fund 
Mangers  
 
 
 

Certificates of deposits issued by 
banks and building societies  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix / 
Fitch’s rating: UK 
sovereign rating or 
Short-term F1+, Long-
term AA 
 or equivalent rating 
from Standard& Poors 
and Moodys 
 

In-house and Fund 
Mangers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UK Government Gilts 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix / 
UK Sovereign rating 
 

In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks  
 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix  / 
Long term AAA 
 

In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

Bonds issued by a financial institution 
which is guaranteed by the UK 
Government 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix  / 
UK Sovereign rating 
 

In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

Sovereign bond issues (other than the 
UK Government) 
 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix  / 
Sovereign rating  
 

In-house buy and 
hold and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

Treasury Bills 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Orange on 
Capital Asset Services’ 
Matrix  / 
UK Sovereign rating 
 
 
 
 

Fund Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): - 

    1. Government Liquidity Funds 
Short-term F1, 
 Long-term AAA 

In-house and Fund 
Managers 

    2. Money Market Funds 
Short-term F1, 
 Long-term AAA 

In-house and Fund 
Managers 

    3. Enhanced cash funds 
Short-term F1, 
 Long-term AAA 

In-house and Fund 
Managers 

    4. Bond Funds 
Long-term AAA 
 

In-house and Fund 
Managers 

    5. Gilt Funds 
Long-term AAA 
 

In-house and Fund 
Managers 

    6. Property Funds 
Long-term AAA 
 

In-house and Fund 
Managers 

 
NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: 
 A maximum of 100% can be held in aggregate in non-specified investment 
 
1.  Maturities of ANY period 
 

Institution / Counterparty 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 

Max % of 
total 
investment
s 

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Capital Asset 
Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-,  
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 

In-house 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3-6 Months 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Capital Asset 
Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-,  
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 

In-house  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Certificates of deposits 
issued by banks and building 
societies NOT covered by 
UK Government guarantee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Capital Asset 
Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-,  
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 

In-house 
buy and 
hold and 
Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



Commercial paper issuance 
covered by a specific UK 
Government explicit 
guarantee  
 

UK Sovereign 
rating  
 
 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 

1 Year 
 
 
 
 

Commercial paper other  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Capital Asset 
Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-,  
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 

In-house 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate Bonds  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: orange 
(1yr) red (6mths) 
and green (3mths) 
on Capital Asset 
Services’ Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term A-,  
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

1 Year  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other debt issuance by UK 
banks covered by UK 
Government guarantee 
 

UK Government 
explicit guarantee 
 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 

30% 
 
 
 

1 Year 
 
 
 

Floating Rate Notes: the use 
of these investments would 
constitute capital 
expenditure unless they are 
issued by a multi lateral 
development bank 
 
 
 

 Long-term AAA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N/A – 
Capital 
Expenditure 
 
 
 
 
 

N/A – 
Capital 
Expenditure 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Property fund: the use of 
these investments would 
constitute capital 
expenditure 

-- 
 
 
 

Fund 
Managers 
 
 

N/A – 
Capital 
Expenditure 
 

N/A – 
Capital 
Expenditure 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



2.  Maturities in excess of 1 year 
 

Institution / Counterparty 
Minimum Credit 
Criteria 

Use 
Max % of 
total 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period 

Term deposits – local 
authorities  
 

-- 
 
 

In-house 
 
 

30% 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Purple 
(2yrs)) on Capital 
Asset Services’ 
Matrix. 
Fitch’s rating: 
Short-term F1+, 
Long-term AA- 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s  
 

In-house 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Certificates of deposits 
issued by banks and 
building societies covered 
by UK explicit Government 
guarantee  
 

UK Sovereign  
 
 
 
 
 

In house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 
 

Certificates of deposits 
issued by banks and 
building societies  
 
 
 
 

Coded: Purple(2yrs) 
on Capital Asset 
Services’ Matrix /  
Short-term F1+, 
Long-term AA- 
 

In house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UK Government Gilts  
 
 
 

 UK Sovereign rating 
 
 
  

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 

30% 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks  
 
 
 

Long term  AAA 
 
 
 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 

Sovereign bond issues (i.e. 
other than the UK 
Government)  
 
 

Long term  AAA  
 
 
 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 

Collective Investment Schemes structure as open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs) 

1.  Enhanced Cash Money 
Market Funds (Credit 
score of 1.25) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Dark Pink 
(5yrs)  on Capital 
Asset Services’ 
Matrix 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term AAA 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 2. Enhanced Cash Money 
Market Funds (Credit 
score of 1.5) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coded: Light Pink 
(5yrs)  on Capital 
Asset Services’ 
Matrix 
Short-term F1, 
Long-term AAA 
Or equivalent rating 
from Standard & 
Poors and Moody’s 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

30% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Bond Funds 
 
 
 

Long-term AAA 
 
 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 
 

30% 
 
 
 

> 1 year 
 
 
 

 4. Gilt Funds 
 
 

Long-term AAA 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

30% > 1 year 

 
 

4.0 ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF INVESTMENTS: 
 
4.1 The accounting treatment may differ from the underlying cash transactions arising from 

investment decisions made by this Council.  To ensure that the Coucnil is protected from 
any adverse revenue impact, which may arise from these differences, the accounting 
implications of new transactions will be reviewed before they are undertaken. 

 
4.2 All forward deposits that are made will take into acount the maximum maturity period limits 

detailed in the tables above.  If a forward deposit is made, the forward period plus the deal 
period should not exceed one year in aggregate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73



ANNEX C2 
 

APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENT 
Current List as at 7 January 2015 

 
 
Capita Asset Services has advised that Councils should only use approved counterparties from 
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating determined by the Council.  This Council has 
determined that it will only use those countries with the sovereign rating of AAA other than the UK 
where the Council has set no limit.  This list will be monitored at least weekly (and for information 
purposes only, includes other sovereign ratings) 
 
 

Based on lowest available rating 
  

AAA                      

 Australia 

 Canada 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 

AA+ 

 Finland 

 Hong Kong 

 Netherlands  

 U.K. 

 U.S.A. 

 

AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 Qatar 

 

AA- 

 Belgium  

 Saudi Arabia 
 

Page 74



         ANNEX ‘D’ 
 

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT & CLAUSES TO BE 
FORMALLY ADOPTED 

 
 
Clauses to be formally adopted 
 
1. This organisation will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for effective 

treasury management: 
 

 a Treasury Management Policy Statement, stating the policies, objectives and 
approach to risk management of its Treasury Management activities; 

 
 suitable Treasury Management practices (TMPs), setting out the manner in 

which the organisation will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and 
prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. 

 
The content of the Policy Statement and TMPs will follow the recommendations 
contained in Sections 6 and 7 of the Code, subject only to amendment where 
necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of this organisation. Such 
amendments will not result in the organisation materially deviating from the 
Code’s key principles. 

 
2.  This organisation (i.e. Full Council) will receive reports on its Treasury 

Management policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an 
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year review and an 
annual report after its close, in the form prescribed in its TMPs. 

 
3.  This organisation delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular 

monitoring of its treasury management policies and practices to Cabinet, and for 
the execution and administration of treasury management decisions to the 
Director of Support services & Deputy Chief Executive (S151 Officer), who will 
act in accordance with the organisation’s policy statement and TMPs.  

 
4.  This organisation nominates Cabinet to be responsible for ensuring effective 

scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and policies. 
 

The Treasury Management Policy Statement 
 
This organisation defines its Treasury Management activities as: 

1. The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. 

2. This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of 
risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury 
management activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting 
of treasury management activities will focus on their risk implications for the 
organisation, and any financial instruments entered into to manage these risks. 

3. This organisation acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide 
support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is 
therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury 
management, and to employing suitable comprehensive performance 
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 

Page 75



ANNEX ‘E’ 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION 

APPENDIX: Treasury management scheme of delegation 

(i) Full Council 

 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities 

 approval of annual strategy and annual outturn 

 

(ii) Cabinet 

 approval of/amendments to the Council’s adopted clauses, treasury management policy 
statement and treasury management practices (recommendations to Council) 

 budget consideration and approval (recommendations to Council) 

 approval of the division of responsibilities 

 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on recommendations 

 receiving and scrutinizing  annual treasury management strategy, annual outturn, quarterly 
reports and also adhoc reports on treasury management policies, practices and activities 

 

(iii) Audit and Governance Committee 

 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making recommendations 
to Cabinet. 

 

(iv) Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

 Reviewing the treasury man management policy and procedures and making 
recommendations to the responsible body. 

 all operational decisions are delegated by the Council to the Director of Resources who 
operates within the framework set out in this strategy and through the Treasury 
Management Policies and Practices 

 Approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of contract in 
accordance with the delegations in financial regulations 

 
 

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER 
 
 

The S151 Officer 

 recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing the 
same regularly, and monitoring compliance 

 submitting regular treasury management policy reports 

 submitting budgets and budget variations 

 receiving and reviewing management information reports 

 reviewing the performance of the treasury management function 

 ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective 
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function 

 ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit 

 recommending the appointment of external service providers 

Page 76



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015 
 
Subject: 2014/15 QUARTER 3 REVENUE MONITORING REPORT 
 

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 

 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGOUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the Revenue Budget position of the 

Council and the Reserve Funds at the end of December 2014.    
 
1.2 The Quarter 3 monitoring for the Capital Programme and Treasury Management position is 

contained in a separate report on this Cabinet agenda. 
 
1.3 This report focuses on three key areas:- 
 (a) The changes to the Revenue Budget 
 (b) Additional Grant income received 
 (c) Reserve Funds 
  
2.0 REVENUE BUDGET: 
 
2.1 The Council set its budget on 11 February 2014 for 2014/15 at £7,463,150 in line with the 

approved Financial Strategy on 5 November 2013. 
 

2.2 At Cabinet on 2 December 2014, the Quarter 2 revenue monitoring report revised the 
budget to £7,236,169.  The approved budget at Quarter 2 in accordance with the Council 
portfolio themes is detailed below: 

 £ 
Customer & Leisure Services 1,394,530
Environmental Services 4,132,349
Support Services 1,609,460
Drainage Board levies 99,830

Net Revenue Expenditure 7,236,169
 
3.0 BUDGET POSITION TO SEPTEMBER 2014: 
 
3.1 Since the budget for 2014/15 was set in February 2014, adjustments to the budget outlook 

have occurred in the Revised Financial Strategy approved at Cabinet on 10 June 2014.  At 
Quarter 1, in September 2014, the budget approved at Cabinet decreased from £7,463,150 
to £7,237,347 – a saving of £227,821.  At Quarter 2, in December 2014, the budget 
approved at Cabinet increased by £840 to £7,236,169 but remained below the Financial 
Strategy target of £7,237,347 – a small saving of £1,178.  The table below details the 
changes that have been identified during Quarter 3 and are recommended to this Cabinet 
for approval:   

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



 
 

  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 
  £ £ £ £ £ 

Budget Outlook approved at Q2 2 Dec 2014 7,236,169 7,121,389 7,383,665 7,476,429 7,571,047
Changes to be approved by this Cabinet:           
Transfer of funding from Service 
Improvement Budget -40,000 

- - - - 

Support Services  28,390 - - - - 
Environmental Services -29,240 - - - - 

Customer & Leisure Services  40,671 - - - - 

Budget Outlook Q3 7,235,990 7,121,389 7,383,665 7,476,429 7,571,047

Financial Strategy 10 June 2014 7,237,347 7,344,080 7,567,682 7,606,872 7,647,046

Budget Outlook Q3 Surplus / (Shortfall) 1,357 222,691 184,017 130,443 75,999 
 
3.2 The recommended changes to the 2014/15 budget in Quarter 3 total a small decrease to 

the budget of £179.  Compared to the revised Financial Strategy approved in June 2014 
there is a small surplus at Quarter 3 of £1,357.   

 
3.3 The changes to the budget in this quarter relate to one corporate change and also changes 

in the three service areas.  For the corporate change, there has been an increase in the 
Council’s energy contract cost which is outside the control of the Council.  Therefore, part of 
the Service Improvement budget has been transferred to offset this increased cost.  The 
following paragraphs provide more detail of the budget changes in each portfolio theme. 

 
3.4 Support Services – The overspend of £28,390 relates to £20,650 increased energy 

contract cost and £7,740 costs relating to Housing Benefit.  This is mainly attributable to the 
costs associated with the proceeds of crime case which generated income of £50,000 and 
has already been included in Quarter 2.  

 
3.5 Further income has been lost at Q3 of £49,050 from reduced investment interest to be 

earned in the year but this has been offset by a reduction of the transfer to reserves.  Also a 
£16,560 cost will be incurred for additional Direct Computer Costs within ICT, which is 
offset by a salary savings in ICT.  These adjustments, in the region of +/- £20,000, are 
reported for approval at Q3 in accordance with the Financial Regulations.  

 
3.5 Environmental & Planning Services – There is an overall underspend in the budget of 

£29,240 due to a higher than anticipated receipt of £45,340 being received from NYCC in 
relation to the Waste Incentive Scheme dating from 2011/12 and 2012/13.  This is offset by 
a decline in income of £16,100 due to £2,800 fewer Street Cleansing Fixed Penalty Notices 
being issued,  £7,900 of Council Street Cleansing Sweeping Service not being required 
from Broadacres and £5,400 not being realised for communal recycling bins.  

 
3.6 Customer & Leisure Services – The overspend of £40,671 is mainly due to the shortage 

of income generated from the Leisure Centres at £32,930.  Hambleton Leisure Centre has 
a reduction of £35,330, Bedale Leisure Centre is £8,100 down, however this is partly offset 
by Thirsk which shows a £10,500 increase.  Leisure Centre income continues to be 
challenging, with Hambleton and Bedale showing the greatest areas of risk.  Bedale Leisure 
Centre has reduced numbers across a number of products and Hambleton is experiencing 
a major downturn in Health and Fitness memberships.  Increased competition is a major 
contributing factor.  An appropriate action plan is in place, it is clear that an extended and 
improved gym, as included in the Capital Programme, is central to future Development 
needs. 

 
 

Page 78



3.7 Also in Customer & Leisure Services, additional income is expected from commercial 
buildings at £12,749 for increased room bookings and refreshment sales.  However, net 
costs of £4,150 are incurred mainly from increased grant paid to the LEP (Local Enterprise 
Partnership) to reflect the additional resource the LEP needs to deal with extra money 
being invested, of which Hambleton District Council have been offered £6m for new 
infrastructure in Northallerton.  Increased energy contract costs are also incurred at 
£16,340, as further described in paragraph 3.3 and 3.4 above.  

 
3.8 The revised changes to the budget at Quarter 3 listed above show a surplus of £1,357 

which is stated in the Recommendations section of this report for approval by Cabinet and 
Council. 

 
4.0 OTHER MATTERS – GRANTS: 
 
4.1 The following grants have been allocated to the Council and paid into the One-Off Fund 

Reserve since the Quarter 3 Revenue Monitoring report was approved in December 2014: 
   

Description Amount 

£ 

Local Authority Data Share Programme – DWP 8,685 
Single Fraud Investigation Scheme – New Burdens Assessment 562 
Neighbourhood Planning Grant - Easingwold 5,000 
Total 14,247 

 
5.0 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS: 
 
5.1 Further to the recommendations for changes to the budget in this Quarter 3 Monitoring 

Report, this report also highlights where there are areas of budget uncertainty.  This can 
give Members early warning of possible issues in the future.  All areas will continue to be 
monitored closely and the final position will be reported at Outturn.  Annex ‘A’ attached 
details the sensitivity analysis. 

 
6.0 RESERVE FUNDING: 
 
6.1 The table below shows the Revenue Reserve position at 31 December 2014, Quarter 3, if 

the recommendations are approved in this Cabinet report.  Only One-Off Fund reserve has 
changed during the quarter.  Further detail is provided below.  
 
Reserve Fund Balance at 

30 Sept 2014  
 Q2 
£ 

 Movement 
(from) / to 

Reserve  Q3 
£ 

 Balance at  
31 Dec 2014 

Q3 
£ 

General Fund 
Council Taxpayers Reserve 
Grants Fund 
Economic Development Fund 
One Off Fund 
Computer Fund 
Repairs & Renewal Fund 
Community Safety Partnership 
Strategic Forum Reserve 
Arts Grants Reserve 

2,000,000 
2,773,475 
517,508 

4,905,360 
483,322 

1,698,000 
4,082,986 

74,327 
14,399 
5,949 

- 
- 
- 

-255,200 
-115,753 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,000,000 
2,773,475 
517,508 

4,650,160 
367,569 

1,698,000 
4,082,986 

74,327 
14,399 
5,949 

Total 16,555,326 -370,953 16,184,373 
 

Page 79



6.2 Grant Fund –  
 
6.3 Economic Development Fund – On 2 September 2014, Cabinet approved that the first 

hour at Applegarth Car Park would be free, with the funding implication of £94,640 being 
supported from the Economic Development Fund, resulting in a balance of £4,905,360.  
The movement in this reserve at Q3 is £255,200, which is split between projects that have 
already been approved by Cabinet during the quarter and those that require approval in 
this report.  The table below details the projects between the five economic development 
Council themes: 

.   

Expenditure in Q3 2014/15 from the 
Economic Development Fund 

Schemes 
already 

approved by 
Cabinet 

Schemes 
to be 

approved 
at Q3  

 
Total 

£ 

Business Support    

 Graduate Scheme  50,000 50,000 

 Networking Events and 
Promotion 

- 7,200 7,200 

Inward Investment    

 Develop Hambleton a place to 
grow brand 

- 3,000 3,000 

Drive Growth - - - 

 Improve Infrastructure Dalton 
Bridge 

100,000  100,000 

 Improve Infrastructure Dalton 
Bridge 

65,000  65,000 

 Improve Infrastructure Central 
Northallerton 

25,000  25,000 

Vibrant Market Towns    

 WiFi in Market Towns  5,000 5,000 
Supporting Activities - - - 
Total expenditure recommended for 
approval at Q3 

190,000 65,200 255,200 

 
6.4 One Off Fund – the initial balance at the beginning of the 2014/15 was £2,092,419, with 

movement of £1,609,097 being explained in the Quarter 1 and 2 2014/15 Cabinet reports.  
At Quarter 3, the movement in the reserve was net expenditure of £115,753.  This is due 
to total income of £14,247 being received, seen in paragraph 4.1 above and £5,000 being 
allocated to neighbourhood planning - Easingwold in lieu of the grant received. In addition, 
in 2 December 2014 cabinet, £125,000 was transfer from the One-Off reserve to the Make 
a Difference reserve.   The expenditure to be allocated from the One-off Fund is detailed 
in the table below.  The balance of the One-off Fund at year end is estimated at Quarter 3 
to be £367,569. 
 

Expenditure in Q3 2014/15 from the One-Off Fund Amount 
Neighbour Hood Planning Grant 5,000 

Total expenditure recommended for approval at Q3 5,000 
 
6.5 At Quarter 3, is it recommended to Cabinet and Council that the total allocation from the 

One-off Fund of £5,000 is approved. 
 
7.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:  
 
7.1 The monitoring of the financial budget throughout the year and reporting the financial year 

end position assists in ensuring the Council’s service requirements are met and 
contributes to the achievement of the priorities set out in the Council Plan. 

 
 Page 80



8.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
8.1 There are no major risks associated with this report.   
 
9.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 

9.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 

 
10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

 

10.1 It is a legal requirement under s25 of the Local Government Act 2003 to set a balanced 
budget and monitor the financial position throughout the year. 

 
11.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES: 

 

11.1 There are no specific equality implications to this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
12.1 That Cabinet approves and recommends to Council: 
 

(1) the budget surplus of £1,357 at paragraph 3.2 
(2) the use of funds from the one-off fund at paragraph 6.4 of £5,000 
(3) the use of funds from the Economic Development fund at paragraph 6.3 of £65,200 

 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
Background papers: Budget Monitoring Q3 working papers 
Author ref:  LBW 
Contact:  Louise Branford-White - Head of Resources 
   Direct Line No: 01609 767024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
100215 Q3 Revenue Monitoring 
 
 
 
 
 
             Page 81



  
            ANNEX ‘A’ 

 
 
BUDGET 2014/15 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS – POTENTIAL SAVINGS / COSTS 
 
 
 

Portfolio Area Area of Sensitivity Commentary 

Support Services Housing Benefit - civil penalty income 
not achieved 

£65,000 income is expected to be received 
from claimants who do not notify the Council 
of a change in their circumstances. This is 
being continually monitored. 
 

Housing Benefit - payments 
overspend  

There is a potential overspend of Housing 
Benefit where more people are claiming 
benefit that was estimated in the budget and 
the provision for bad debt is being closely 
monitored. 
 

Environmental & 
Planning 
Services 

Fuel prices increase / decrease Any fluctuation in fuel prices will affect the 
budget in Waste and Street Scene. 
 

Waste & Street Scene salary costs Currently budgets for waste and recycling 
services are on track, however if any 
additional sicknesses occurs or agency 
employees are required the budget may 
need to be increased. 
 

Planning Fee income not achieved This is a large income stream for the Council 
and it will continue to be monitored. 
 

Customer & 
Leisure Services 

Leisure Centre income streams Hambleton Leisure Centre is experiencing a 
downturn in Health & Fitness and Bedale 
Leisure Centre has reduced numbers across 
a number of products.  All four leisure 
centres income streams are continually 
being reviewed with the specific action plan 
in place 
 

 

Page 82



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015 
 
Subject: 2014/15 Q3 CAPITAL MONITORING AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT 

MID YEAR REVIEW REPORT 
  

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGOUND: 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Quarter 3 update at 31 December 2014 on the 

progress of the Capital Programme 2014/15 and the Treasury Management position.  A full 
schedule of the Capital Programme 2014/15 schemes is attached at Annex ‘A’, together 
with the relevant update on progress of each scheme. 

 
1.2 Capital expenditure is intrinsically linked with Treasury Management as the way that the 

Capital Programme is funded directly affects the Treasury Management arrangements of 
the Council.  This Council currently does not borrow for a capital purpose; instead capital 
expenditure is funded by grants, receipts and reserves.  The use of the Council’s funds 
affects the daily Treasury Management cash flow position, the requirement to investment 
these surplus funds and the income earned. 

 
2.0 CAPITAL  PROGRAMME SUMMARY:  
 
2.1 The 2014/15 Capital Programme was approved by Cabinet at Quarter 2 on 

2 December 2014 at £2,543,427.  
 
2.2 A net decrease to the Capital Programme of £224,486 is detailed in this Quarter 3 monitor 

that results in a revised Capital Programme budget of £2,318,941.  The Capital Programme 
is attached at Annex ‘A’. 

 
2.3 The net decrease of £224,486, to be approved in this report, is made up of:- 
 

(a)  decrease in expenditure from re-profiling of £218,793 from 2014/15 to 2015/16; 
(b)  transfer of funds between schemes, with overall effect being zero; 
(c)  increase in expenditure of £307 supported from Council reserves; 
(d)  reduction in scheme expenditure of £6,000. 

 
2.4 Table 1 below outlines the variances reported against each portfolio area. 

 
  Portfolio Current 

Approved 
Expenditure 

 Q2 

Revised 
projected 
Outturn 

Q3 

Variance 
Increase/ 

(decrease)

Budget re-
profiled (to) 

2015/16 

Funding 
transferred 

between 
Schemes in 

2014/15 

Request for 
additional 
funding 

Funding 
no longer 
required

  £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Environmental & 
Planning Services 

340,029 340,029 -  -  -  - -

Customer & Leisure 587,068 580,052 (7,016) (27,323) 20,000 307 -

Support Services  1,616,330 1,398,860 (217,470) (191,470) (20,000) - (6,000)

Total 2,543,427 2,318,941 (224,486) (218,793) - 307 (6,000)

Table 1: Capital Programme Q3 2014/15 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



2.5 To 31 December 2014 capital expenditure of £987,160 had been incurred or committed 
representing 42.6% of the revised Quarter 3 Capital Programme position.  Schemes are 
under development and in the final quarter of 2014/15 further capital expenditure is 
expected to see the majority of the Capital Programme complete by the end of the 2014/15 
financial year. 

 
2.6 The proposed changes to the Capital Programme, detailed for each of the three portfolio 

areas, are attached at Annex ‘B’. 
 
3.0 FUNDING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME: 
   
3.1 For 2014/15, at Quarter 3, the Capital Programme of £2,318,941 is being funded from 

£266,704 external grants/contributions and £2,052,237 from reserves.  
 
3.2 The external grants contributions of £266,704 are £166,277 Government Grant for Disabled 

Facilities grant, £50,000 S106 funding towards Sowerby Sports Village and £50,427 as a 
result of 46% of the Bedale All Weather Pitch scheme being funded by a contribution from 
the Football Foundation.  

  
3.3 The capital receipts estimated to be received during 2014/15 is £857,707. 
 
3.4 Therefore at year end in accordance with accounting practice the Capital Programme will 

be financed using all available in year funding prior to using the Council’s reserves.  At 
Quarter 3 it is estimated that £1,194,530 of funding will be used from the capital receipts 
reserve or unapplied grants reserves. 
       

3.5 The overall funding position continues to be closely monitored to ensure the overall Capital 
Programme remains affordable and sustainable over the 10 year approved capital plan.  
Analysis of the funding of the 10 year Capital Programme is provided along with the 
Financial Strategy and Capital Programme 2015/16, for approval in February 2015 Cabinet 
prior to the beginning of the new financial year. 

 
3.6 It should be noted that this report reflects the Capital Programme position at Quarter 3 as if 

approval has been agreed by Cabinet.  This is detailed in the recommendations below. 
 
4.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2014/15 – QUARTER 3: 
 
4.1 The Treasury Management Quarter 3 update 2014/15 is attached at Annex ‘C’ and provides 

Members with an update on the:- 
 

(a) Treasury Management legislative requirement 
(b) economy and interest rates 
(c) investment strategy 
(e) borrowing position 
(f) compliance with prudential and treasury indicators 

 
4.2 The investment position at Quarter 3 was £27,390,000, with an average interest rate return 

of 0.77%; this was 0.42% higher than the 7 day market rate at 0.35%.  For surplus funds 
invested for 3 months or more, a return of 0.83% was achieved which was 0.40% greater 
than the 3 month benchmark at 0.43%. 

 
4.3 To ensure that the Council is proactive in the area of Treasury Management the Council 

has joined Capital Asset Services (the Council’s Treasury Management advisors) regional 
benchmarking club.  This compares Hambleton District Council’s investment portfolio 
position to other District Councils.  At the end of December 2014, the average return on the 
Council’s investment portfolio was 0.77%, this is 0.08% greater than the average for other 
District Council’s at 0.69%.  

Page 84



4.4  The interest rate environment continues to offer investment market rates of return around 
the Base Rate level of 0.5%.  The Council’s original budgeted investment return for 2014/15 
was approved at £300,000 in February 2014.  However at Quarter 3, the estimate of 
interest to be earned during the year has been revised down to £250,950.  Further detail is 
available in the 2014/15 Quarter 3 Revenue Monitoring Report.  Further information on the 
economic environment and interest rates is attached at Annex ‘D’. 

. 
4.5 The Council remains debt free; no borrowing has been taken in 2014/15. 
 
4.6 The Council has operated within the Treasury and Prudential indicators set out at Annex 

‘E’. The Director of Support Services and Deputy Chief Executive – S151 Officer - confirms 
that the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during 
the first nine months of 2014/15. 

 
5.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES: 
 
5.1 All schemes approved as part of the Capital Programme have been evaluated against key 

corporate priorities.  Schemes are only undertaken and approved by Cabinet in accordance 
with the Council Plan and supporting project initiation documentation. 

 
5.2 Treasury Management supports all aspects of the Council’s priorities as with good 

management of surplus funds, investment interest earned can be used to support Council 
services. 

 
6.0 RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
6.1 There are two main risk associated with the Capital Programme and Treasury 

Management:- 
 

Risk Implication Prob Imp Total Preventative action 
Capital budgets are 
not monitored, 
expenditure is above 
budget and the 
funding position is 
unknown 

The Council is 
unable to 
control capital 
expenditure or 
redirect 
resources to 
priority areas 
 

3 5 15 Continue with regular budget 
monitoring with regular 
reports to Chief Officers, 
Management Team and 
Members 

Treasury 
Management 
investment of 
surplus funds occurs 
with unsound 
institutions  

The value of the 
investment 
could be lost 

3 5 15 Use of Treasury 
Management advisers, good 
investment creditworthiness 
rating criteria policy 
approved by Council and 
regular monitoring reporting 
to Members 

    Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
 
7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
7.1 The financial implications are dealt with in the body of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 85



8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
8.1 Treasury Management activities and the Capital Programme conform to the Local 

Government Act 2003 and the Council has adopted the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice. 

 
9.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES: 
 
9.1 The Capital Programme seeks to address key equality issues that affect the Council and 

the public.  The main scheme that specifically addressed equalities in the Capital 
Programme 2014/15 is the Disabled Facilities Grant scheme. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
10.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approves and recommends that Council:- 
 

(1) approve the net decrease of £224,486 in the Capital Programme to £2,318,941 and 
the detailed Capital Programme attached at Annex ‘A’; 

 
(2) approve all movements in the Capital Programme +/- £20,000, in accordance with 

financial regulations, as detailed in Annex ‘B’ and below: 
  

a. the increase in capital expenditure of £20,000 for the Customer Service 
Web/Intranet Development to be funded from the ICT Customer Excellence 
Scheme. 

 
b. the decrease in expenditure of £20,000 for the ICT Customer Excellence 

Scheme to fund the Customer Service Web/Intranet Development.  
 
c. the decrease in expenditure of £206,403 for re-profiling from this year to 

2015/16 £27,323 for Hambleton Leisure Centre Improvement Scheme, £19,080 
for ICT Improvements scheme and £160,000 for Bedale Gateway Bypass 

 
(3) note the further overall decrease in the Capital Programme which are individually  

below £20,000 as detailed in Annex ‘B’ and cumulatively total £18,083 
 

(4) note the Capital Funding position - contributions of £266,704, capital receipts of 
£857,707 and £1,194,530 capital reserves; 

 
(5) note the Treasury Management activity at Annex ‘C’; 
 
(6) note the Prudential and Treasury indicators at Annex ‘E’ and that there were no 

changes at Quarter 3. 
 

 
JUSTIN IVES 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Author ref:  LBW 
 
Contact:  Louise Branford-White     

Head of Resources 
   Direct Line No: 01609 767024 
 
100215  Q3 201415 Cap Mon and Treas Man 

 

Page 86



A
N

N
E

X
 A

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
S

ch
em

es
 2

01
4/

15
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 2
01

3/
14

 s
ch

em
es

 B
/F

w
d

)

C
O

A
 C

C
R

ef
:

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ffi
ce

r
Ti

tle
:

Original Approved Expenditure 
14/15 

Schemes rolled Fwd from 2013/14

Approved Changes at Q1 2014/15

Approved Changes at Q2 2014/15

Approved Expenditure Revised at 
Q2 2014/15

Third Party Contribution

Cost to the Council

Expenditure at 22/12/14

Anticipated Expenditure £

Variance at Q3

Change in Funding 
Taken/(Returned) to Capital Reserve 

(9 months)

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

En
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l &

 P
la
nn

in
g 
Se
rv
ic
es

H
Z6

60
0/

H
Z6

60
1

1
M

J
Pu

rc
ha
se
 o
f b

in
s a

nd
 b
ox
es
 fo

r r
ef
us
e 
an
d 
re
cy
cl
in
g

36
,0

00
36

,0
00

36
,0

00
32

,6
02

36
,0

00
0

H
Z6

00
0

13
M

J
Di
sa
bl
ed

 F
ac
ili
tie

s G
ra
nt
s

15
0,

00
0

80
,3

79
23

0,
37

9
16

6,
27

7
64

,1
02

12
4,

47
5

23
0,

37
9

0
-6

6,
27

7

H
Z6

60
5

B/
fw

d
M

J
De

po
t ‐
 W

as
h 
Ba

y
18

,0
00

8,
00

0
26

,0
00

26
,0

00
20

0
26

,0
00

0
8,

00
0

H
Z6

60
9

B/
fw

d
M

J
W
as
te
 &
 S
tr
ee
t S

ce
ne

 C
lo
ck
in
g 
Sy
st
em

9,
00

0
9,

00
0

9,
00

0
0

9,
00

0
0

H
Z6

60
5

11
M

J
Ce

nt
ra
l d
ep

ot
 e
xt
er
na
l l
ig
ht
in
g 
im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

20
,0

00
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
15

,4
60

20
,0

00
0

H
Z6

60
8

12
M

J
Ce

nt
ra
l D

ep
ot
 ‐ 
Se
cu
rit
y 
Fe
nc
in
g

8,
00

0
8,

00
0

8,
00

0
0

8,
00

0
0

H
Z6

82
9

M
J

Id
ox
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M

an
ag
em

en
t S

of
tw

ar
e 
‐ P

la
nn

in
g

10
,6

50
10

,6
50

10
,6

50
10

,6
50

10
,6

50
0

10
,6

50
0

To
ta
l S
ch
em

e 
Va

lu
e 
En

vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l &

 P
la
nn

in
g 
Se
rv
ic
e s

21
4,

00
0

10
7,

37
9

0
18

,6
50

34
0,

02
9

16
6,

27
7

17
3,

75
2

18
3,

38
7

34
0,

02
9

0
-4

7,
62

7
Cu

st
om

er
 &
 L
ei
su
re
 S
er
vi
ce
s

0 0

H
Z6

44
1

B/
Fw

d
D

G
Th
irs
k 
an
d 
So
w
er
by

 le
isu

re
 c
en

tr
e 
im

pr
ov
em

en
t s
ch
em

e
36

,2
27

36
,2

27
36

,2
27

10
,2

58
36

,2
27

0

H
Z6

44
4

D
G

Th
irs
k 
&
 S
ow

er
by

 S
po

rt
s V

ill
ag
e

0
50

,0
00

50
,0

00
50

,0
00

0
33

,6
95

50
,0

00
0

H
Z6

44
0

D
G

St
ok
es
le
y 
Le
isu

re
 C
en

tr
e 
im

pr
ov
em

en
t s
ch
em

e
0

4,
34

9
4,

34
9

4,
34

9
4,

34
9

4,
34

9
0

4,
34

9

H
Z6

43
9

B/
Fw

d
D

G
Be

da
le
 L
ei
su
re
 c
en

tr
e 
im

pr
ov
em

en
t s
ch
em

e
20

3,
29

6
20

3,
29

6
50

,4
27

15
2,

86
9

19
3,

60
1

20
3,

29
6

0
-5

0,
42

7
H

Z6
32

5
B/
Fw

d
D

G
CC

TV
 C
on

tr
ol
 R
oo

m
 U
pg
ra
de

3,
83

5
3,

83
5

3,
83

5
0

3,
83

5
0

B/
Fw

d
D

G
CC

TV
 c
on

tr
ol
 ro

om
 u
pg
ra
de

 ‐ 
W
ire

le
ss
 N
et
w
or
k

71
,0

00
71

,0
00

71
,0

00
0

71
,0

00
0

-7
1,

00
0

H
Z6

04
6

B/
Fw

d.
D

G
Th
irs
k 
N
ew

 T
I C

13
37

1,
33

7
1,

33
7

0
1,

33
7

0
H

Z6
04

7
B/
Fw

d
D

G
Be

da
le
 C
ra
ft
 Y
ar
d 
W
in
do

w
3,

97
5

3,
97

5
3,

97
5

3,
97

5
3,

97
5

0

H
Z6

04
8

B/
Fw

d
D

G
Ev
ol
ut
io
n 
Ca
r P

ar
k 
Ex
te
ns
io
n

7,
00

0
-1

,9
79

5,
02

1
5,

02
1

5,
02

1
5,

02
1

0
-1

,9
79

D
G

W
or
ks
pa
ce
s ‐
 ro

lle
r s
hu

tt
er
 d
oo

rs
0

9,
00

5
9,

00
5

9,
00

5
9,

31
2

9,
31

2
30

7
9,

31
2

D
G

Fo
ot
pa
th
 D
iv
er
sio

n 
&
 C
ar
 P
ar
k 
Cr
ea
tio

n 
Le
em

in
g 
Ba

r
36

,7
00

36
,7

00
36

,7
00

36
,7

00
0

36
,7

00

Annex A

Page 87



A
N

N
E

X
 A

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
S

ch
em

es
 2

01
4/

15
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 2
01

3/
14

 s
ch

em
es

 B
/F

w
d

)

C
O

A
 C

C
R

ef
:

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ffi
ce

r
Ti

tle
:

Original Approved Expenditure 
14/15 

Schemes rolled Fwd from 2013/14

Approved Changes at Q1 2014/15

Approved Changes at Q2 2014/15

Approved Expenditure Revised at 
Q2 2014/15

Third Party Contribution

Cost to the Council

Expenditure at 22/12/14

Anticipated Expenditure £

Variance at Q3

Change in Funding 
Taken/(Returned) to Capital Reserve 

(9 months)

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

D
G

17
 M

ar
ke
t P

la
ce
 B
ird

 N
et
tin

g
6,

00
0

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

6,
00

0
0

6,
00

0

2
D

G
Le
isu

re
 E
qu

ip
m
en

t L
ea
se
 B
uy

20
0,

00
0

-2
00

,0
00

0
0

0
0

0

H
Z6

81
9

10
D

G
Cu

st
om

er
 S
er
vi
ce
s W

eb
/I
nt
ra
ne

t D
ev
el
op

m
en

t
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
10

0,
00

0
41

,4
00

12
0,

00
0

20
,0

00
20

,0
00

14
D

G
Ha

m
bl
et
on

 A
ll 
W
ea
th
er
 P
itc
h 
Re

fu
rb
ish

m
en

t
13

1,
00

0
-1

31
,0

00
0

0
0

0
0

15
D

G
St
ok
es
le
y 
Al
l W

ea
th
er
 P
itc
h 
Re

fu
rb
ish

m
en

t
11

,0
00

11
,0

00
11

,0
00

0
11

,0
00

0

H
Z6

43
8

16
D

G
Ha

m
bl
et
on

 L
ei
su
re
 C
en

tr
e 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
t S

ch
em

e
20

,0
00

15
,3

23
35

,3
23

35
,3

23
1,

59
2

8,
00

0
-2

7,
32

3
-2

7,
32

3
D

G
Ha

m
bl
et
on

 L
ei
su
re
 C
en

tr
e 
 F
en

ce
0

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
7,

90
8

10
,0

00
0

10
,0

00

To
ta
l S
ch
em

e 
Va

lu
e 
Cu

st
om

er
 &
 L
ei
su
re
 S
er
vi
ce
s

46
2,

00
0

34
1,

99
3

73
,3

54
(2

90
,2

79
)

58
7,

06
8

10
0,

42
7

48
6,

64
1

31
1,

11
1

58
0,

05
2

-7
,0

16
-6

4,
36

8

Page 88



A
N

N
E

X
 A

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
S

ch
em

es
 2

01
4/

15
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 2
01

3/
14

 s
ch

em
es

 B
/F

w
d

)

C
O

A
 C

C
R

ef
:

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ffi
ce

r
Ti

tle
:

Original Approved Expenditure 
14/15 

Schemes rolled Fwd from 2013/14

Approved Changes at Q1 2014/15

Approved Changes at Q2 2014/15

Approved Expenditure Revised at 
Q2 2014/15

Third Party Contribution

Cost to the Council

Expenditure at 22/12/14

Anticipated Expenditure £

Variance at Q3

Change in Funding 
Taken/(Returned) to Capital Reserve 

(9 months)

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi
ce
s

0 0

H
Z6

82
2

B/
Fw

d
JI

Ai
r c
on

di
tio

ni
ng

 ‐ 
Le
gi
sla

tiv
e 
re
qu

ire
m
en

t C
or
po

ra
te

15
00

0
11

,8
62

26
,8

62
26

,8
62

6,
80

0
26

,8
62

0

H
Z6

30
1

B/
Fw

d
JI

Pu
bl
ic
 li
gh
tin

g 
en

er
gy
 re

du
ct
io
ns

31
,0

88
31

,0
88

31
,0

88
18

,7
45

31
,0

88
0

H
Z6

30
0

4
JI

Pu
bl
ic
 li
gh
tin

g 
re
pl
ac
em

en
t

51
,0

00
18

,8
16

69
,8

16
69

,8
16

34
3

69
,8

16
0

5
JI

Ci
vi
c 
Ce

nt
re
 ‐ 
Ca
rp
et
 R
ep

la
ce
m
en

t
10

,0
00

7,
00

0
17

,0
00

17
,0

00
6,

91
5

17
,0

00
0

7,
00

0
6

JI
Ci
vi
c 
Ce

nt
re
 ‐ 
In
te
rn
al
 P
ai
nt
in
g

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

6,
00

0
5,

99
9

6,
00

0
0

7
JI

Ci
vi
c 
Ce

nt
re
 ‐ 
W
in
do

w
 R
ep

la
ce
m
en

ts
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

95
2

10
,0

00
0

H
Z6

82
8

8
JI

Ci
vi
c 
Ce

nt
re
 ‐ 
Ba

ck
up

 G
en

er
at
or

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

40
,0

00
26

,1
54

40
,0

00
0

H
Z6

80
7

9
JI

IC
T 
Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts
 

18
7,

03
0

18
7,

03
0

18
7,

03
0

42
,0

69
15

4,
86

0
-3

2,
17

0
-2

5,
08

0

H
Z6

85
0

17
D

G
Al
l L
ei
su
re
 C
en

tr
es
 ‐ 
Di
gi
ta
l T
ra
ns
ac
tio

n 
So
ft
w
ar
e

24
,0

00
24

,0
00

24
,0

00
10

,3
51

24
,0

00
0

H
Z6

85
0

9
JI

IC
T 
Le
isu

re
 Im

pr
ov
em

en
ts

10
5,

67
0

10
5,

67
0

10
5,

67
0

2,
04

9
10

5,
67

0
0

H
Z6

85
2

9
JI

IC
T 
In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Se
cu
rit
y/
Co

m
pl
ia
nc
e

6,
30

0
6,

30
0

6,
30

0
0

1,
00

0
-5

,3
00

-1
2,

39
0

H
Z6

85
3

9
JI

IC
T 
Cu

st
om

er
 E
xc
el
le
nc
e

76
,0

00
76

,0
00

76
,0

00
5,

26
0

56
,0

00
-2

0,
00

0
-2

0,
00

0

JI
IC
T 
Fi
na
nc
e 
sy
st
em

 sp
lit
 fr
om

 R
ic
hm

on
ds
hi
re
 D
ist
ric
t C

ou
nc
il

0
60

,0
00

60
,0

00
60

,0
00

49
,1

42
60

,0
00

0
60

,0
00

H
Z6

01
3

18
JI

C
ar

 P
ar

k 
R

es
ta

te
m

en
ts

45
,0

00
45

,0
00

45
,0

00
0

45
,0

00
0

H
Z6

01
0

19
JI

C
ar

 P
ar

ks
 - 

Th
irs

k 
C

ob
bl

es
75

,0
00

14
,3

48
6,

40
6

95
,7

54
95

,7
54

93
,0

28
95

,7
54

0
6,

40
6

Page 89



A
N

N
E

X
 A

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
S

ch
em

es
 2

01
4/

15
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 2
01

3/
14

 s
ch

em
es

 B
/F

w
d

)

C
O

A
 C

C
R

ef
:

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
O

ffi
ce

r
Ti

tle
:

Original Approved Expenditure 
14/15 

Schemes rolled Fwd from 2013/14

Approved Changes at Q1 2014/15

Approved Changes at Q2 2014/15

Approved Expenditure Revised at 
Q2 2014/15

Third Party Contribution

Cost to the Council

Expenditure at 22/12/14

Anticipated Expenditure £

Variance at Q3

Change in Funding 
Taken/(Returned) to Capital Reserve 

(9 months)

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

H
Z6

01
5

20
JI

B
ed

al
e 

G
at

ew
ay

 C
ar

 P
ar

k
16

0,
00

0
16

0,
00

0
16

0,
00

0
0

0
-1

60
,0

00
-1

60
,0

00

H
Z6

02
5

21
JI

A
do

pt
io

ns
 - 

Th
irs

k 
P

ha
se

s 
2 

&
 3

20
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

20
0,

00
0

0
20

0,
00

0
0

H
Z6

05
2

22
JI

A
do

pt
io

ns
 - 

E
le

ct
ric

 B
ol

la
rd

s 
- T

hi
rs

k 
&

 N
or

th
al

le
rto

n
40

,0
00

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

0
40

,0
00

0
JI

Th
irs

k 
M

ar
ke

t P
la

ce
 C

en
tra

l A
re

a 
E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t 

0
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

4,
00

3
10

,0
00

0
10

,0
00

S
tru

ct
ur

al
 R

ep
ai

r t
o 

C
iv

ic
 C

en
tre

 R
oo

f
6,

46
0

6,
46

0
6,

46
0

6,
46

0
0

6,
46

0
N
/A

JI
Re

ve
nu

e 
Re

pa
irs
 &
 R
en

ew
al
s

39
9,

35
0

39
9,

35
0

39
9,

35
0

22
0,

85
2

39
9,

35
0

0

To
ta
l S
ch
em

e 
Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi
ce
s

1,
45

0,
35

0
76

,1
14

77
,0

00
12

,8
66

1,
61

6,
33

0
0

1,
61

6,
33

0
49

2,
66

3
1,

39
8,

86
0

-2
17

,4
70

-1
27

,6
04

T
o

ta
l C

ap
it

al
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
 2

01
4/

15
2,

12
6,

35
0

52
5,

48
6

15
0,

35
4

-2
58

,7
63

2,
54

3,
42

7
26

6,
70

4
2,

27
6,

72
3

98
7,

16
0

2,
31

8,
94

1
-2

24
,4

86
-2

39
,5

99

Page 90



ANNEX ‘B’ 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME: 
 
1.1 The proposed changes to the Capital Programme, detailed for each of the portfolio areas 

are listed below:  
 
1.2 Environmental & Planning Services – no schemes required adjustment at Quarter 3. 
 
1.3 Customer & Leisure Services - 3 schemes require adjustment at Quarter 3: 
 

(a) Workspaces: Roller Shutter Doors – New doors installed during Quarter 3 completes 
the scheme and resulted in £307 additional expenditure, this was 3.4% increase above 
the original cost of the scheme at £9,005. 

 
(b) Customer Services Web/Intranet Development - The initial project costs were based 

upon indicative prices supplied by software houses in September 2013. In the event, 
the software product actually chosen was more expensive than anticipated but this will 
be offset in the longer term by the product needing less ICT resource for operation.  An 
increase of £20,000 is required to be approved (an increase above the original cost by 
20%) which can be funded from the ICT Customer Excellence scheme, detailed in 
paragraph 1.4(c) below. 

 
(c) Hambleton Leisure Centre Improvement Scheme - Approval is sought at Quarter 3 to 

re-profile £27,323 of this scheme in to 2015/16.  Initial expenditure has been incurred 
for schematic assessment and preparatory works and consultants have been 
appointed to prepare the business case.  Project to roll forward into 2015/16 as the 
scheme needs to take consideration of North Northallerton project and potential for 
external grant funding. .  

 
1.4 Support Services– 2 schemes require adjustment at Quarter 3:- 
 

(a) ICT Improvements - Six out of the twelve projects are awaiting quotes but the majority 
of projects should complete in 2015/16.  One of the twelve projects will not commence 
until 2015/16 and therefore approval is sort for £19,080 to be rolled forward into 
2015/16.  The Total Land Charges project has been funded by revenue and therefore 
£6,000 is returned to the reserve.  Funding has been reduced by £7,090 to support ICT 
Information Security/Compliance project as detailed in paragraph 1.4(b) below. 
 

(b) Structural ICT Information Security / Compliance - The legislative PSN (Public Security 
Network) requirements are to be completed as highlighted in the External Health Check 
report commissioned in April 2014.  Original expenditure was estimated at £6,300 but 
an additional £7,090 is requested at Quarter 3 2014/15, totalling £13,390.  The 
additional £7,090 can be met by a transfer of funding from the ICT improvements 
project as detailed above in paragraph 1.4(a).  The majority of the expenditure will be 
spent in 2015/16 due to a delay in the project implementation. Only £1,000 will be 
expended with £12,390 being rolled forward to 2015/16.   

 
(c) ICT Customer Excellence – Approval is sort at Quarter 3 to use £20,000 funding to 

support the Customer Services Web / Intranet Development project as detailed above in 
paragraph 1.3(b).  

 
(d) Bedale Gateway Car Park – This project is on hold until after Bedale & Leeming Bypass 

is completed in 2016.  Funding of £160,000 to be returned to the reserve. 
 
1.6 Capital schemes are monitored on a monthly basis and reported to Cabinet quarterly, 

ensuring that the majority of schemes are held within budget or reported to Council at the 
earliest opportunity. 

 
1.7 New Schemes added to the Capital Programme all have supporting Project Initiation 

Documentation to ensure projects are affordable, sustainable and prudent. Page 91



  ANNEX ‘C’ 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT POSITION 2014/15 – QUARTER 3 
 
1.0 LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT: 
 
1.1 The CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice for 

Treasury Management recommends that Members be updated on Treasury Management 
activities regularly (Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Annual and Mid-year 
reports, as well as quarterly updates). This report therefore ensures this Council is 
implementing best practice in accordance with the Code. 

 
1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on Members for the review and scrutiny of 

Treasury Management policy and activities.  This Quarter 3 report therefore updates 
Members on the current Treasury Management position 

 
1.3 The Council’s capital expenditure plans at Quarter 3 continue to be financed by either 

external grants or contributions, capital receipts received in the year or capital reserves.  
The changes in the capital expenditure plans as detailed in the first half of this report are 
not financed by borrowing and therefore there is no affect on the Council’s underlying need 
to borrow. 

 
1.4 In 2014/15 the Council‘s treasury position (excluding finance leases) is to continue to be 

debt free.  No borrowing has been taken in 2014/15 to date. 
 
1.5 The capital financing requirement, which is the amount of borrowing required to support the 

capital expenditure programme, is zero for this Council.  All capital expenditure as detailed 
in the paragraphs above is supported from grants, contributions and reserves.   The 
following table shows the Treasury Management position as at 31 December 2014:- 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 1: Borrowing and Investment position at 31 December 2014 
 
1.9 The table shows that changes in the capital expenditure programme only affects the 

Treasury Management position through the surplus funds that are available to the Council 
to invest, to earn investment income. 

 
2.0 THE ECONOMY, INTEREST RATES AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY: 
 
2.1 The economic background and interest rate forecast, which sets the environment in which 

the Council’s Treasury Management operates, is attached at Annex ‘D’. 
 
3.0 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2014/15 – QUARTER 3: 
 
3.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by the Department for 

Communities and Local Government guidance, which was implemented in the Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2014/15, and includes the Annual Investment 
Strategy approved by Cabinet on 11 February 2014.  It sets out the Council’s investment 
priorities as being: 

 
 Security of capital; 

  31 Dec 14 Rate 
  £000’s % 

Capital Financing Requirement 0  - 
Borrowing 0 0.0  

Investments 27,390 0.77 

Page 92



 Liquidity; 
 Yield 
 

3.2 The Council’s priority is security of its surplus funds when investing with financial 
institutions.  However the Council will always aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on 
investments in line with its risk appetite and which is commensurate with proper levels of 
liquidity and security. In the current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep 
investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to seek out value available in 
periods up to 12 months.  Investment are placed with highly credit rated financial 
institutions, using the Council’s Treasury Management advisers – Capita Asset Services - 
suggested creditworthiness approach including sovereign credit rating and Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) overlay information. 

3.3 Investments held by the Council - in the current economic climate, it is a very difficult 
investment market in terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous 
decades as rates are very low and in line with the 0.5% Bank Rate.  Indeed, the Funding for 
Lending scheme has reduced market investment rates even further.  The potential for a 
prolonging of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on Banks, prompts a low 
risk and short term strategy.  Given this risk environment, investment returns are likely to 
remain low for the foreseeable future.  
 

3.4 Investment rates available in the market have been broadly stable during the quarter and 
have continued at historically low levels as a result of the ultra-low Bank Rate and other 
extraordinary measures such as the Funding for Lending Scheme.  The volatility in the 
market has pushed back economic forecasters’ view of when the next base rate rise will be 
to Quarter 4 2015.   

 
3.5 The average level of funds available for investment purposes during Quarter 3 –                 

31 December 2014 - was £31,289,164.  The level of funds available was mainly dependent 
on the timing of precept payments, receipt of grants and progress on the Capital 
Programme.  The Council held core cash balances (funds available for a year or more) of 
£25,000,000 at Quarter 3 and £2,390,000 cash flow movement balances.  Total investment 
balance at 31 December 2104 was £27,390,000. 

 
3.6  

Benchmark Benchmark Return Council Performance Investment Interest Earned

7 day  0.35% 0.50% £20,372 

3 month  0.43% 0.83% £161,603 

Table 2: Investment performance for quarter 3 – latest information 31 December 2014 
 
3.7 The table shows that the Council monitors its core cash against 3 month LIBID – London 

Inter bank Investment Rates – and its cash flow investments against the 7 day rate. The 
Council outperformed the 3 month benchmark by 0.40% and the 7 day benchmark by 
0.15%. 

 
3.8 The Council’s original budgeted investment return for 2014/15 was approved at £300,000 in 

February 2014.  However at Quarter 3, the estimate of interest to be earned during the year 
has been revised down to £250,950.  Further detail is available in the 2014/15 Quarter 3 
Revenue Monitoring Report.  

 
 
 

Page 93



4.0 BORROWING 2014/15 – QUARTER 3: 
 
4.1 The following borrowing information is provided to ensure Members are updated with the 

interest rates available for borrowing and are kept informed with regards to the current 
position. Capita Asset Services – the Council’s Treasury Management advisor – target 
PWLB rate for new long term borrowing for Quarter 4 2014/15 has decreased from the 
original estimate in February 2014 for 25 years by 0.6% to 3.40%, and for 5 years has 
decreased by 0.5% to 2.20%.   

 
4.2 The table below shows the Public Works Loans Board interest rates which were available 

for loans during Quarter 3 of 2014/15.  The Public Works Loans Board is the mechanism by 
which the Government allows Local Authorities to borrow at slightly lower interest rates 
than are available to other institutions.  Certainty rates, as detailed in the table, are interest 
rates available to Local Authorities if they inform the Government of their borrowing 
requirements at the beginning of the financial year and are 0.02% (or 20 basis points) 
below Public Works Loans Board rates. This was introduced by the Government in 
October 2012. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 3: Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) certainty rates, half year ended 
31 December 2014 

 
4.3 Treasury Borrowing – the Council remains debt free and undertook no external borrowing 
 for cash flow purposes or capital financing purposes in the first nine months of 2014/15. 
 
4.4 Rescheduling of Borrowing – the Council has no debt and therefore undertook no 

rescheduling of debt during 2014/15. 
 
4.5 Repayment of borrowing – the Council has no external loans and therefore no 

repayments were necessary. 
 
5.0 COMPLIANCE WITH PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS: 
 
5.1 It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 

borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators (affordability 
limits) were approved in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement by Cabinet on 
11 February 2014 and are in compliance with the Council’s Treasury Management 
Practices. 

 
5.2 During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the Treasury and 

Prudential Indicators approved which are attached at Annex ‘E’.  
 
5.3 Officers can confirm that the approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were 

not breached during the Quarter ended 31 December 2014. 

  1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year 

Low 1.12% 1.94% 2.54% 3.24% 3.22% 

Date 31/12/2014 16/12/2014 16/12/2014 16/12/2014 16/12/2014 

High 1.38% 2.56% 3.24% 3.85% 3.84% 

Date 01/10/2014 01/10/2014 01/10/2014 01/10/2014 01/10/2014 

Average 1.24% 2.23% 2.91% 3.60% 3.60% 

Page 94



  ANNEX ‘D’ 
 

1.0 ECONOMIC BACKGROUND 

1.1 After strong UK GDP growth in 2013 at an annual rate of 2.7%, and then in 2014 
0.7% in Quarter 1, 0.9% in Quarter 2 2014 (annual rate 3.2% in Quarter 2), Quarter 
3 has seen growth fall back to 0.7% in the quarter and to an annual rate of 2.6%.  It 
therefore appears that growth has eased since the surge in the first half of 2014 
leading to a downward revision of forecasts for 2015 and 2016, albeit that growth 
will still remain strong by UK standards.  For this recovery to become more balanced 
and sustainable in the longer term, the recovery needs to move away from 
dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing market to exporting, and 
particularly of manufactured goods, both of which need to substantially improve on 
their recent lacklustre performance.  This overall strong growth has resulted in 
unemployment falling much faster than expected. The MPC is now focusing on how 
quickly slack in the economy is being used up. It is also particularly concerned that 
the squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers should be reversed by wage 
inflation rising back significantly above the level of inflation in order to ensure that 
the recovery will be sustainable.  There also needs to be a major improvement in 
labour productivity, which has languished at dismal levels since 2008, to support 
increases in pay rates.  Unemployment is expected to keep on its downward trend 
and this is likely to eventually feed through into a return to significant increases in 
wage growth at some point during the next three years.  However, just how much 
those future increases in pay rates will counteract the depressive effect of increases 
in Bank Rate on consumer confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure 
and the buoyancy of the housing market, are areas that will need to be kept under 
regular review. 

1.2 Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.0% in 
November, the lowest rate since September 2002.  Forward indications are that 
inflation is likely to remain around or under 1% for the best part of a year.  The 
return to strong growth has helped lower forecasts for the increase in Government 
debt over the last year but monthly public sector deficit figures during 2014 have 
disappointed until November.  The Autumn Statement, therefore, had to revise the 
speed with which the deficit is forecast to be eliminated. 

1.3 The U.S. Federal Reserve ended its monthly asset purchases in October 2014. 
GDP growth rates (annualised) for Quarter 2 and Quarter 3 of 4.6% and 5.0% have 
been stunning and hold great promise for strong growth going forward.  It is 
therefore confidently predicted that the first increase in the Fed. rate will occur by 
the middle of 2015.    

1.4 The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from deflation.  In November the 
inflation rate fell to 0.3%.  However, this is an average for all EZ countries and 
includes some countries with negative rates of inflation.  Accordingly, the ECB did 
take some rather limited action in June and September to loosen monetary policy in 
order to promote growth and is currently expected to embark on quantitative easing 
early in 2015 to counter this threat of deflation and to stimulate growth. 

 

Page 95



2.0 INTEREST RATE FORECAST: 

2.1 The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following 
forecast: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2 Capita Asset Services undertook a review of its interest rate forecasts on 
5 January 2015 after a proliferation of fears in financial markets around the plunge in 
the price of oil had caused a flight from equities into bonds and from exposure to the 
debt and equities of emerging market oil producing countries to safe havens in 
western countries.  These flows were compounded by further fears that Greece 
could be heading towards an exit from the Euro after the General Election on 
January 25 and financial flows generated by the increasing likelihood that the ECB 
would soon be starting on full blown quantitative easing (QE) purchase of Eurozone 
Government debt.  In addition, there has been a sharp increase in confidence that 
the US will start increasing the Federal Reserve Rate by the middle of 2015 due to 
the stunning surge in GDP growth in Quarters 2 and 3 of 2014.  This indicated that 
the US is now headed towards making a full recovery from the financial crisis of 
2008.   

2.3 The result of the combination of the above factors is that we have seen bond yields 
plunging to phenomenally low levels, especially in long term yields.  These falls are 
unsustainable in the longer term but just how quickly these falls will unwind is hard 
to predict. In addition, positive or negative developments on the world political scene 
could have a major impact in either keeping yields low or prompting them to recover 
back up again.  We also have a UK general election coming up in May 2015; it is 
very hard to predict what its likely result will be and the consequent impact on the 
UK economy, and how financial markets will react to those developments. 

2.4 This latest forecast includes a move in the timing of the first increase in Bank Rate 
from Quarter 2 of 2015 to Quarter 4 of 2015 as a result of the sharp fall in inflation 
due to the fall in the price of oil and the cooling of the rate of GDP growth in the UK, 
albeit, that growth will remain strong by UK standards, but not as strong as was 
previously forecast. The Governor of the Bank of England, Mark Carney, has 
repeatedly stated that increases in Bank Rate will be slow and gradual.  The MPC is 
concerned about the impact of increases on many heavily indebted consumers, 
especially when average disposable income is only currently increasing marginally 
as a result of wage inflation now running slightly above the depressed rate of CPI 
inflation, though some consumers will not have seen that benefit come through for 
them.  In addition, whatever party or coalition wins power in the next General 
Election, will be faced with having to implement further major cuts in expenditure 
and / or increases in taxation in order to eradicate the annual public sector net 
borrowing deficit. 

Page 96



ANNEX ‘E’ 
 
PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 
 
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable 
borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators (affordability 
limits) are included in the approved Treasury Management Strategy Statement by 
Cabinet on 18 March 2014 
 
The main purpose of the indicators is to control how much a Council needs to borrow and 
as this Council is debt free, the majority of the prudential indicators are nil. 
 

1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2014/15 2014/15 

Extract from budget and rent setting report  
Original 
Budget 

Actual 
Q3 

 £'000 £'000 

Capital Expenditure 2,126 2,318 

    

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream Nil Nil 
    
Net borrowing requirement General Fund   

    brought forward 1 April Nil Nil 

    carried forward 31 March Nil Nil 

    in year borrowing requirement Nil Nil 

    

 Capital Financing Requirement  31 March 2015 Nil Nil 

   

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions  £ £ 

    Increase in Council Tax (band D) per annum   £0.06 £0.06 

 

2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT  INDICATORS  2014/15 2014/15 

 original actual 

 £'000 £'000 
Authorised Limit for external debt -    
    borrowing £5,000 £5,000 
    other long term liabilities £1,000 £1,000 
    TOTAL £6,000 £6,000 
    
Operational Boundary for external debt -    
     borrowing £4,000 £4,000 
     other long term liabilities £600 £600 
     TOTAL £4,600 £4,600 
    
Actual external debt £0 £0 
   
Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure   

     Net principal re fixed rate investments 90% 90% 

    

Upper limit for variable rate exposure   

     Net principal re variable rate  investments  50% 50% 

    
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 
days (per maturity date) 

£10,000 £10,000 

Page 97



 
 
Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing during 2014/15 upper limit lower limit 

under 12 months  0% 100% 

12 months and within 24 months 0% 0% 

24 months and within 5 years 0% 0% 

5 years and within 10 years 0% 0% 

10 years and above 0% 0% 

 

Page 98



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015 
 
Subject: FUNDING & INVESTMENT OFFICER  

All Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Economic Development and Finance: Councillor P R Wilkinson 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 To seek approval from Members to create a Funding & Investment Officer post within the 

Business & Economy Team for an initial period of 2 years to support the implementation of 
the Councils Economic Strategy.  

 
1.2 In December 2014, the Council adopted ‘Hambleton – A Place to Grow 2014-24’ as a 10 

year Economic Strategy for the District. Although the Council has identified £5m in its 
current financial strategy to support the delivery of the 10 year Investment Plan, it is clear 
that estimated costs of delivery are considerably higher and the ability to secure external 
investment from a wide range of sources is critical in the effective delivery of the Strategy. 

 
1.3 Securing external investment will enable the Council to achieve maximum value for money 

for its own financial contribution, using it as mechanism to attract match funding from a 
range of public and private sources. This will be a major role for the Business & Economy 
Team moving forward, but it is vital that it does not detract from the delivery of priority 
initiatives which officers are already working on.  

 
1.4 There are a range of funding opportunities becoming available through the Local Enterprise 

Partnership, Government and European Initiatives, some of which we are aware of, others 
which require time consuming research. In an environment where public funding is tight we 
need to take advantage of as many opportunities as possible. 

 
1.5 A new role of Funding & Investment Officer is proposed to bring additional knowledge, skills 

and experience into the Council. In addition to researching opportunities, this post would 
lead on the range of tasks associated with bidding for and delivering investment, including 
completing application forms, preparing business plans, green book appraisals, risk 
assessments, bringing relevant parties together, collating performance monitoring and 
financial auditing information, and fulfilling publicity and communication requirements. A 
proposed job description is attached at Annex A to the report. 

 
2.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
2.1 The Funding & Investment Officer post will assist the Council in delivering its priority Driving 

Economic Development and supporting local economic growth by securing funding and 
investment to deliver projects identified in the Councils Economic Strategy.  

 
3.0 RISK ASSESSMENT:  
  
3.1 Risk in not approving the recommendations as shown below:- 
 

Risk Implication Prob* Imp* Total Preventative action 
Projects in the 
Economic Strategy are 
not delivered 

The Council is unable to 
deliver the level of 
outputs and outcomes 
included the Economic 
Strategy 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

Bring funding and 
investment expertise into 
the Council through the 
creation of a dedicated 
post 

Prob = Probability, Imp = Impact, Score range is Low = 1, High = 5 
Page 99

Agenda Item 9



 
Overall the risk of agreeing with the recommendations is much lower than the risk of not agreeing 
them and is considered acceptable  
 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
4.1 There will be an annual revenue cost to the Council in 2015/16 and 2016/17 for salary and 

on-costs. It is proposed that this is funded through the Economic Development Fund.  
Overall the revenue effects of the Funding & Investment Officer will be £39,930pa. 

 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
5.1 There are no legal implications in relation to this report. 
 
6.0 EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
6.1 Recruitment to the post will take account of equality and diversity issues as outlined in the 

Councils Policies.  
   
7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS:      
 
7.1 It is recommended that:  

 
(1) funding of £39,930 from the Economic Development Fund in 2015/16 and £40,730 

in 2016/17 for a post of Funding & Investment Officer is approved; 
 
(2) the effectiveness of the role is reviewed towards the end of 2016/17; and 
 
(3) subject to the outcome of the review a further report is brought to Cabinet regarding 

funding the post beyond 2016/17. 
 

 
DAVE GOODWIN 
 
 
Background papers:  Funding & Investment Officer Job Description 
 
Author ref:   SS 
Contact:   Sam Swinbank 
    Business & Economy Manager 
    Direct Line No: 767233 
 
  
 
240215 Funding Officer 

Page 100



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

JOB DESCRIPTION 
 

 
POST NO: 
 

 
0000 

 
POST TITLE: 

 
Funding & Investment Officer 
 

 
SALARY GRADE: 

 
Grade  £28k – £30k  depending on job evaluation 
 

 
RESPONSIBLE TO: 

 
BUSINESS and ECONOMY MANAGER 
 

 
JOB PURPOSE: 
 
To lead on maximising external funding into the District (UK Government, European and other 
funding streams) through the identification, development, securing, administration and 
performance monitoring (including audits) of funding to ensure the authorities financial ability to 
deliver the Economic Strategy Investment Plan. 
 
To provide support to the business and economy team through the development and 
implementation of the team’s communication and marketing strategy and maximising publicity 
associated with the delivery of the Investment Plan. 
 
 
PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
External Funding & Investment  
 
1. Searching and identifying suitable sources of funding (UK Government, European and other 

funding streams). Examining the background of each potential funding opportunity to 
determine its ability to deliver projects identified within the Economic Strategy Investment 
Plan - criteria, timescales, submission content and other requirements.  

 
2. To undertake the preparation of business cases to support funding applications based on the 

Green Book Appraisal. 
 
3. Completion and submission of high quality grant applications. Completing application forms 

and drafting comprehensive, well-structured and logical funding proposals/bids that present 
a convincing case for support.  

 
4. Gathering information from colleagues / partners and tailoring projects to match funding 

and / or developing funding packages to match projects. Ensuring all necessary 
documentation is forwarded to the funding body as requested and applications are 
submitted with deadline.  

 
5. Liaising with colleagues internally, and if necessary any external stakeholders, about 

potential funding opportunities. Building positive relationships with grant funding 
organisations / partners 

 

Page 101



6. Contributing to the development of effective financial management procedures to ensure 
timely processing and maintenance of appropriate documents, evidence and invoices of 
project activity. 

 
7. Ensuring proper project record keeping suitable for local government, other funding bodies is 

undertaken and local and national and European audit requirements are met to ensure 
compliance with all aspects of the grant conditions on which the grant was awarded, 
including monitoring requirements. 

 
8. Establish and maintain a library of funding information including application forms, guidance 

notes, policy and technical source material. 
 
Communications & Marketing  
 
1. To lead on the development and maintenance of the Business & Economy section of the 

Authorities web site, ensuring it is relevant to the audiences who use it. 
 
2. To lead on the development of the communications and marketing plan, developing clear 

messages that support our objectives, co-ordinating internal and external communications to 
maximise stakeholder awareness of our economic activity through all media types to 
maximise coverage. 

 
3. Develop and manage the social media presence of the Business & Economy Team   
 
4. To support the effective delivery of the Hambleton “A Place to Grow” brand, to deliver 

economic growth in accordance with the Economic Strategy Investment Plan. 
 
Other 
 
1. Maintaining a thorough understanding of the projects / initiatives to be delivered through the 

Economic Strategy Investment Plan.  
 
2. To support the Business & Economy Team and related functions including: the 

collection/collation/input/analysis and dissemination of information, assisting in the 
compilation of reports.  

 
3. Be an initial point of contact and provide advice and information for individuals/businesses/ 

who are proposing to apply for grants under the various Council initiatives. 
 
4. Assist in the organisation of seminars, training events and promotional activities 

including the preparation and delivery of materials and presentations at such events. 
 
5. Measure the impact of communications and external funding activity, compile regular reports 

on progress against the planned objectives. 
 
6. Undertake any other duties which may be required commensurate with the grade of the post 

observing and fulfilling all responsibilities in respect of data protection. 
 
December 2014 

Page 102



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
PERSON SPECIFICATION – Funding & Investment Officer 
 
 
POST NO: 000 
 
 
 
QUALITIES 
 

 
ESSENTIAL 

 
DESIRABLE 

EDUCATION AND 
PROFESSIONAL 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 

 A bachelor’s degree or equivalent 
qualification. 

 

EXPERIENCE  Demonstrable experience of working 
within regeneration, economic 
development or an external funding role. 

 Knowledge of the national funds from 
government departments - criteria, 
eligibility, costing regime, monitoring and 
evaluation requirements. 

 Experience of European Regional 
Development Funding. 

 Experience of preparing successful 
funding bids, business plans, financial 
and performance monitoring information 

 Experience of marketing and 
communications across a broad range 
of media including digital, social and 
print. 

 

 Familiarisation of working 
with external bodies such 
as government 
departments, local 
enterprise partnerships 
and district councils. 

 Experience of partnership 
and multi-agency working  

 Experience of participating 
in multi-disciplinary teams 

 

PERSONAL 
COMPETENCIES 
 

 Able to comprehend sometimes 
complex regulations and guidance 
documents. 

 Excellent communication skills with the 
ability to write clear and concise reports, 
letters, creative funding applications and 
PR communications showing a 
meticulous attention to detail. 

 High standard of computer literacy 
(Excel, Word and Outlook).  

 Able to plan own workload and influence 
others to ensure deadlines are met. 

 The ability to identify problems, analyse/ 
research complex information and use 
judgement to reach informed decisions 
or help others to do so. 

 The ability to work collaboratively and to 
develop excellent working relationships 
with colleagues, senior officers, elected 
members , service users and other 
external partners 

 Some knowledge of local 
government policies and 
procedures. 

 Experience of developing 
and delivering a PR and 
Communications Strategy. 

 

Page 103



OTHER 
REQUIREMENTS 

 Able to attend external meetings both 
locally and nationally on occasions. 

 
 Flexibility to work across all locations 

within the Hambleton District with 
occasional out of normal hours working 

 
 Need to have a clean driving license and 

access to a car. 
 

 
 

 
 
(1 = Application Form   2 = Interview   3 = Proof of Qualification   4 = Practical Exercise)   
 
December 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



HAMBLETON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report To: Cabinet 
  10 February 2015  
 
Subject: PUBLIC OPEN SPACE, SPORT AND RECREATION ACTION PLANS 
 

Brompton and Stillington Wards 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Customer Services: Councillor Mrs B S Fortune 

 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND:     
 
1.1 The Council’s policy is to endorse Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Sub Area 

Action Plans to provide a more strategic and efficient process for allocating future Section 
106 monies (see Annex A) either from Local Development Framework allocations or 
windfall sites.     

 
1.2 The purpose of this report is to endorse the Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation 

Action Plans for Brompton (refresh) and Stillington (refresh).  
  
1.3 The Council’s policy states that each Action Plan must comply with the following: 
 

 Ascertain what is already provided 
 Consider public open space, sport and recreation projects that are included in the 

local Community or Parish Plan to identify existing need 
 Includes consultation with community groups that manage public open space, sport 

or recreation facilities to identify future need 
 Includes consultation with the District Council Elected Member(s) and the local Area 

Partnership 
 Meet the obligations of Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Supplementary 

Planning Document  
 Is signed off by a Council Director 

 
The Action Plan detailed in 1.2 meet this criterion.    

 
1.4 Copies of the Action Plans detailed in 1.2 are available at Annex B. 
 
2.0 LINK TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES:    
 
2.1 This links primarily to the Health priority of the Council. 
 
3.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
3.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and there are no risks identified as a result. 
 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
4.1 The main method of delivery of Section 106 allocations is to passport external funding from 

developers to community groups.  Funds will not be committed or released to organisations 
until the Council has received the monies from the developer. 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



4.2 Action Plans will be subject to 12 monthly reviews to determine progress to ensure that the 
projects are still relevant and viable. 

 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
5.1 There is a legal responsibility upon the Council to ensure this funding is used in a way 

consistent with the individual Section 106 Agreements. 
 
6.0 SECTION 17 CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998:   
 
6.1 Some of these projects have the potential to reduce crime and disorder through providing 

diversionary activity for young people. 
 
7.0  EQUALITY/DIVERSITY ISSUES:  
 
7.1  All projects in receipt of this funding should have equal access and be available for the 

general public to use. 
 
8.0  RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
8.1  It is recommended that the Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plans in 

Annex B be endorsed. 
 
 
 
DAVE GOODWIN 
 
 
Background papers: Hambleton Local Development Framework – Open Space, Sport and 

Recreation Supplementary Planning Document 
 
Author ref:   DRG 
 
Contact:   Dave Goodwin 
    Director – Customer and Leisure Services  
    01609 767147 
 
 
100215  Public Open Space Brompton  Stillington 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



  

E
lig

ib
le

 s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 C
ab

in
et

 fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
sc

he
m

es
 a

pp
ro

ve
d

 

Y
es

 
N

o 

In
di

vi
du

al
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 c

he
ck

ed
 b

y 
C

o
m

m
u

ni
ty

 
Le

is
ur

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 m
ee

t S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

cr
ite

ria
 a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

of
fe

rs
 v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

H
ea

lth
 / 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 T
ea

m
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
T

ow
n 

/ P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 r

e-
su

bm
it 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pu

bl
ic

 o
pe

n,
 s

po
rt

 a
nd

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 c
an

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
sc

he
m

e 
up

 to
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
S

ub
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.
  S

tr
at

eg
ic

 s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ili
tie

s 
in

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 a

nd
 T

hi
rs

k;
 T

ow
n 

P
ar

ks
 in

 N
or

th
al

le
rt

on
 a

nd
 

B
ed

al
e 

an
d 

C
yc

le
-w

ay
s 

in
 B

ed
al

e 

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

of
f-

si
te

 p
ub

lic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 s

po
rt

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

fr
om

 a
n 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

si
te

 c
an

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
sc

he
m

e(
s)

 in
 th

e 
S

ub
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
th

at
 is

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

at
 s

ite
, i

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
or

de
r,

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
es

 
sp

ec
ifi

ed

S
ec

tio
n 

10
6 

m
on

ie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

of
f-

si
te

 p
ub

lic
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
, s

po
rt

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

fr
om

 w
in

df
al

l 
si

te
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

sc
he

m
e(

s)
 in

 t
he

 
S

ub
 A

re
a 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
th

at
 is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

th
at

 
si

te
, i

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
or

de
r 

O
nc

e 
ag

re
ed

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ea

ch
ed

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
ne

ed
s 

re
fr

es
hi

ng
 a

nd
 r

e-
su

bm
itt

in
g 

to
 C

ab
in

et
 

A
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 P

ub
lic

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

, S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

is
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ei
su

re
  

P
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ro

vi
n

g
 S

u
b

 A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 
an

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
06

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

s 
fo

r 
P

u
b

lic
 O

p
en

 
S

p
ac

e,
 S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 s
ch

em
es

A
N

N
E

X
 A

 

Page 107



  
A

N
N

E
X

 B
 

 
 

P
U

B
LI

C
 O

P
EN

 S
P

A
C

E,
 S

P
O

R
T 

A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 –
 B

R
O

M
P

TO
N

 (
R

EF
R

ES
H

) 
  

W
ha

t 
P

O
S 

/ 
Sp

or
t 

/ 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

do
 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 a
lr

ea
dy

? 

M
an

ag
in

g 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
  

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
io

ns
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 t
he

re
 is

 a
 

ne
ed

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t?
 

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 

co
st

 (
£)

 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
P

ri
or

it
y 

(1
 =

 h
ig

h
es

t 
pr

io
ri

ty
) 

Vi
lla

ge
 G

re
en

s;
 2

 x
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
pl

ay
 a

re
a,

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
(f

oo
tb

al
l, 

ru
gb

y)
 &

 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

 
  

Br
om

pt
on

 F
lo

od
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
G

ro
up

 
  

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 f

lo
od

 
de

fe
nc

es
 in

 t
rib

ut
ar

ie
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
flo

w
 t

im
es

 o
f 

flo
od

in
g 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 

W
at

er
 E

nd
 g

re
en

  

Th
ro

ug
h 

pr
ev

io
us

 f
lo

od
in

g 
in

ci
de

nt
s.

 
£2

0,
00

0.
00

1 

Br
om

pt
on

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

Re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

an
d 

re
ne

w
 f

en
ci

ng
  

An
nu

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

on
go

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 r
eg

ul
ar

 u
se

rs
 

£1
0,

00
0.

00
2 

Br
om

pt
on

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

la
y 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
O

ng
oi

ng
 p

ub
lic

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 
re

gu
la

r 
us

er
s 

£2
0,

00
0.

00
3 

Br
om

pt
on

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 0
.5

 m
ile

 1
.4

m
 w

id
e 

du
al

 u
se

 c
yc

le
 a

nd
 r

un
ni

ng
 t

ra
ck

 
w

ith
 f

itn
es

s 
st

at
io

ns
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 p
ub

lic
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

re
gu

la
r 

us
er

s 
£2

5,
00

0.
00

4 

Br
om

pt
on

 A
llo

tm
en

t 
G

ro
w

s 
 

 
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 b

or
eh

ol
e 

so
 t

ha
t 

w
at

er
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 o

n 
si

te
   

Th
ro

ug
h 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
llo

tm
en

t 
ow

ne
rs

 
£2

0,
00

0.
00

5 

Br
om

pt
on

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

M
in

im
um

 F
A 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

flo
od

lig
ht

 
sy

st
em

, b
en

ch
es

 a
nd

 s
he

lte
rs

 
Co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 f

ro
m

 
Br

om
pt

on
 J

un
io

rs
 F

oo
tb

al
l C

lu
b 

£4
0,

00
0.

00
6 

Br
om

pt
on

 F
lo

od
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
G

ro
up

 
  

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 f

lo
od

 
de

fe
nc

es
 in

 t
rib

ut
ar

ie
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
flo

w
 t

im
es

 o
f 

flo
od

in
g 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 

th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 o
f 

Br
om

pt
on

  

Th
ro

ug
h 

pr
ev

io
us

 f
lo

od
in

g 
in

ci
de

nt
s.

 
£4

0,
00

0.
00

7 

Br
om

pt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l 
  

Re
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

ha
ll 

an
d 

its
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

– 
ph

as
e 

1 
- 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e;
 t

o 
re

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
re

-b
ui

ld
 t

he
 b

ac
k/

re
ar

 a
re

a 
of

 
th

e 
ha

ll.
 

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 f
ro

m
 c

ur
re

nt
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 
vi

lla
ge

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 e
ar

ly
 

20
14

 
  

£2
5,

00
0.

00
8 

  
./ 

co
nt

in
ue

d 

Page 108



  
W

ha
t 

P
O

S 
/ 

Sp
or

t 
/ 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
do

 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

lr
ea

dy
? 

M
an

ag
in

g 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
  

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
io

ns
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 t
he

re
 is

 a
 

ne
ed

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t?
 

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 

co
st

 (
£)

 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
P

ri
or

it
y 

(1
 =

 h
ig

h
es

t 
pr

io
ri

ty
) 

 

Br
om

pt
on

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l  

Re
no

va
tio

n 
an

d 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t 

of
 

th
e 

ha
ll 

an
d 

its
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

– 
ph

as
e 

2 
- 

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
 n

ew
 k

itc
he

n 
an

d 
to

ile
t 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ar
ea

. T
o 

cr
ea

te
 a

 n
ew

 m
ee

tin
g 

ar
ea

/in
te

rn
et

 
ca

fe
. T

o 
re

-b
ui

ld
 t

he
 o

ut
si

de
 

bu
ild

in
g.

 

Fe
ed

ba
ck

 f
ro

m
 c

ur
re

nt
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 
vi

lla
ge

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 e
ar

ly
 

20
14

 
 

£2
5,

00
0.

00
 

9 

 
 

Page 109



 

 
 

P
U

B
LI

C
 O

P
EN

 S
P

A
C

E,
 S

P
O

R
T 

A
N

D
 R

EC
R

EA
TI

O
N

 A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 –
 S

TI
LL

IN
G

TO
N

 (
R

EF
R

ES
H

) 
  W

ha
t 

P
O

S 
/ 

Sp
or

t 
/ 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
do

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y?
 

M
an

ag
in

g 
or

ga
ni

sa
ti

on
 a

nd
 

co
nt

ac
t 

de
ta

ils
 

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
io

ns
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 t
he

re
 is

 
a 

ne
ed

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t?
 

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 

co
st

 (
£)

 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
P

ri
or

it
y 

(1
 =

 h
ig

h
es

t 
pr

io
ri

ty
) 

 Ch
ild

re
n’

s 
Pl

ay
 a

re
a 

at
 S

til
lin

gt
on

 
Sp

or
ts

 &
 S

oc
ia

l g
ro

un
d 

 St
ill

in
gt

on
  

Pl
ay

in
g 

Fi
el

ds
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 N
ew

 p
la

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

 
 Pa

ris
h 

Pl
an

/ 
Ch

ild
re

n’
s 

co
m

m
en

ts
 

U
se

rs
 &

 v
is

ito
rs

 h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d.

 
N

o 
cu

rr
en

t 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
 

 
£1

0,
00

0 
(£

2,
09

8 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 

da
te

)  

1 

 Cr
ic

ke
t 

Pi
tc

h 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

s 
at

 
St

ill
in

gt
on

 S
po

rt
s 

&
 S

oc
ia

l C
lu

b 
 

 St
ill

in
gt

on
 C

ric
ke

t 
Cl

ub
 

 N
ew

 c
ric

ke
t 

ca
ge

 &
  n

et
s 

to
 

st
an

da
rd

 h
ei

gh
t 

an
d 

 f
lo

or
in

g 
 

 U
se

rs
 &

 v
is

ito
rs

 h
av

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d;

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ca

ge
 &

 
flo

or
in

g 
no

 lo
ng

er
 a

de
qu

at
e 

 

 
£2

5,
00

0 
 

2 

 Sp
or

ts
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
lu

b 
in

do
or

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 
 

 St
ill

in
gt

on
 S

po
rt

s 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 C
lu

b 

 U
pd

at
ed

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ro

om
s,

 s
ho

w
er

s 
an

d 
to

ile
ts

, a
nd

 k
itc

he
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
  

 U
se

rs
: 

Pa
ris

h 
Pl

an
 r

ev
ie

w
 

20
13

 –
 o

ut
da

te
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

 

 
£1

00
,0

00
 

3 

 Vi
lla

ge
 G

re
en

 
 

 St
ill

in
gt

on
 P

ar
is

h 
Co

un
ci

l 
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 p

la
nt

in
g 

 U
se

rs
: 

Pa
ris

h 
Pl

an
 r

ev
ie

w
 

20
13

 
 

 
£3

,0
00

 
4 

 Po
nd

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 c

om
m

on
 

la
nd

  
 

 St
ill

in
gt

on
 P

ar
is

h 
Co

un
ci

l 
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 V
ill

ag
e 

po
nd

 
an

d 
tr

ee
 p

la
nt

in
g 

on
 b

ot
h 

si
de

s 

 U
se

rs
: 

Pa
ris

h 
Pl

an
 r

ev
ie

w
 

20
13

 –
 o

ut
da

te
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

 

  
£3

,0
00

 
5 

Ca
r 

pa
rk

 a
t 

Sp
or

ts
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
lu

b 
St

ill
in

gt
on

 P
la

yi
ng

 F
ie

ld
s 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

Re
su

rf
ac

in
g 

of
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

 U
se

rs
: 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
 

£5
,0

00
 

6 

  

Page 110



./
co

nt
in

ue
d  

W
ha

t 
P

O
S 

/ 
Sp

or
t 

/ 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

do
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

al
re

ad
y?

 
M

an
ag

in
g 

or
ga

ni
sa

ti
on

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ac

t 
de

ta
ils

 

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
io

ns
 

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

kn
ow

 t
he

re
 is

 
a 

ne
ed

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t?
 

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 

co
st

 (
£)

 
C

om
m

un
it

y 
P

ri
or

it
y 

(1
 =

 h
ig

h
es

t 
pr

io
ri

ty
) 

 W
oo

dl
an

d 
st

rip
 a

t 
St

ill
in

gt
on

 S
po

rt
s 

an
d 

So
ci

al
 C

lu
b 

 
 

 St
ill

in
gt

on
 P

la
yi

ng
 F

ie
ld

s 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 

 Pe
rio

di
c 

tr
ee

 fe
lli

ng
 &

 r
ep

la
nt

in
g 

sc
he

m
es

 f
or

 a
 h

ea
lth

y 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

 M
at

ur
e 

tr
ee

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

at
te

nt
io

n 
fo

r 
he

al
th

 &
 s

af
et

y;
 

an
d 

al
so

 g
oo

d 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

 
£3

,0
00

 
7  

 
 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 147

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Financial Strategy 2015/16 to 2024/25
	4 Revenue Budget 2015/16
	5 Council Tax 2015/16
	6 2015/16 Capital Programme Budget, Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Prudential Indicators
	7 2014/15 Quarter 3 Revenue Monitoring Report
	8 2014/15 Quarter 3 Capital Programme and Treasury Management Monitoring Report
	9 Funding and Investment Officer
	10 Public Open Space, Sport and Recreation Action Plans
	12 Purchase of the Northallerton Prison Site
	13 Staffing Matters

